
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Committee 
 

Meeting: Tuesday, 5th December 2017 at 6.00 pm in the Civic Suite, 
North Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, GL1 2EP 

 
 

Membership: Cllrs. Taylor (Chair), Lewis (Vice-Chair), Lugg, Hanman, Morgan, 
D. Brown, Dee, Hansdot, Toleman, J. Brown, Fearn, Finnegan and 
Walford 

Contact: Tony Wisdom 
Democratic Services Officer 
01452 396158 
anthony.wisdom@gloucester.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 

1.   APOLOGIES  
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable pecuniary, or non-
pecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please 
see Agenda Notes. 

3.   MINUTES (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 7th November 2017. 

4.   LATE MATERIAL  
 
Please note that any late material relating to the applications detailed below will be published 
on the Council’s website as a supplement in the late afternoon of the day of the meeting. 

5.   CLEARWATER PRIMARY SCHOOL, QUEDGELEY - 17/00729/FUL (Pages 11 - 72) 
 
Application for determination:- 
 
Erection of a Primary School and associated infrastructure with car park and pedestrian and 
vehicular access from Clearwater Drive and pedestrian access to Eldersfield Ciose on land at 
Clearwater Drive, Quedgeley. 

6.   25 - 31 EASTGATE STREET - 1701177FUL (Pages 73 - 90) 
 
Application for determination:- 
 
Eastgate Street facade refurbishment works, relocation of concrete artwork panels, extension 
of building at ground floor over highway, alteration of existing canopy over Eastgate Street, 
and subdivision of the former BHS retail store to provide a class A1 retail unit over ground 



 

2 
 

and first floor along with a new class A1/A3 Cafe unit at ground floor and associated outdoor 
seating area at 25 – 31 Eastgate Street. 

7.   133, BRISTOL ROAD - 17/01134/FUL  
 
Application for determination:- 
 
Change of use from use Class D1 (non-residential institution) to use Class D2 (assembly and 
leisure) to open a fitness club, and installation of external plant to rear elevation (following 
refusal off application 17/00196/FUL – amended hours of opening proposed, at 133, Bristol 
Road. 
 
REPORT TO FOLLOW 

8.   DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 91 - 104) 
 
To consider a schedule of applications determined under delegated powers during the month 
of October 2017. 

9.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Tuesday, 9th January 2018 at 6.00 pm. 

 
 
 

 
Jon McGinty 
Managing Director 
 
Date of Publication: Monday, 27 November 2017 
 
 



 

3 
 

NOTES 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a member 
has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011. 
 

Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows – 
 

Interest 
 

Prescribed description 
 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
from the Council) made or provided within the previous 12 months 
(up to and including the date of notification of the interest) in 
respect of any expenses incurred by you carrying out duties as a 
member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any 
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or civil 
partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil 
partner (or a body in which you or they have a beneficial interest) 
and the Council 
(a)   under which goods or services are to be provided or works are 

to be executed; and 
(b)   which has not been fully discharged 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s area. 
 

For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, interest or 
right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for you, your 
spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as a 
spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the 
land or to receive income. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
Council’s area for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
 

(a)   the landlord is the Council; and 
(b)   the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil partner 

or a person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner has 
a beneficial interest 

 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where – 
 

(a)   that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land 
in the Council’s area and 

(b)   either – 
i.   The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 

or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or 

ii.   If the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in 
which you, your spouse or civil partner or person with 



 

4 
 

whom you are living as a spouse or civil partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 

For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture 
stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme 
within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 
and other securities of any description, other than money 
deposited with a building society. 
 

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter 
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those 
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or 
civil partner where you are aware of their interest. 

 

Access to Information 
Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website: 
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting 
date. 
 

For further details and enquiries about this meeting please contact Anthony Wisdom, 
01452 396158, anthony.wisdom@gloucester.gov.uk. 
 

For general enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic 
Services, 01452 396126, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk. 
 

If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this 
information, or if you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information 
please call 01452 396396. 
 

Recording of meetings 
Please be aware that meetings may be recorded. There is no requirement for those 
wishing to record proceedings to notify the Council in advance; however, as a courtesy, 
anyone wishing to do so is advised to make the Chair aware before the meeting starts.  
 

Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, 
Officers, the Public and Press is not obstructed.  The use of flash photography and/or 
additional lighting will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council 
staff. It is vital that you follow their instructions:  
 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 
 Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 
 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building; gather at the 

assembly point in the car park and await further instructions; 
 Do not re-enter the building until told by a member of staff or the fire brigade that it is 

safe to do so. 

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/
mailto:anthony.wisdom@gloucester.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk


 

5 
 

Copyright Notice for viewing documents via Public 
Access 

 
Planning application information submitted to the Council is protected by the Copyright Acts 
(Section 47, 1988 Act). You may only use material which is downloaded and/or printed for 
consultation purposes, to compare current applications with previous schemes and to check 
whether developments have been completed in accordance with approved plans. Further 
copies must not be made without the prior permission of the copyright owner. If you link to 
Public Access you have acknowledged that you have read, understood and agree to the 
copyright and other limitations. 
 
Gloucester City Council reserve the right to remove or not display certain planning 
application information for the confidentiality or other reasons. 

 
 
 

 
HUMAN RIGHTS 

 
In compiling the recommendations on the following reports we have given full consideration 
to all aspects of the Human Rights Act 1998 in relation to the applicant and/or the occupiers 
of any affected properties. In particular, regard has been had to Article 8 of the ECHR 
(Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence); Article 1 of the First 
Protocol (Right to the use and enjoyment of property) and the requirement to ensure that 
any interference with the right in this Article is both in accordance with the law and 
proportionate. A balance needs to be drawn between the right to develop land in 
accordance with planning permission and the rights under Article 8 and also Article 1 of the 
First Protocol of adjacent occupiers. On assessing the issues raised by the applications no 
particular matters, other than those referred to in the reports, warrant any different action to 
that recommended.  
 

 
 
 

 
EQUALITY ACT 2010 

 
In considering this matter, full consideration has been given to the need to comply with the 
Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010 and in particular to the obligation to 
not only take steps to stop discrimination, but also to the promotion of equality, including the 
promotion of equality of opportunity and the promotion of good relations.  An equality 
impact assessment has been carried out and it is considered that the Council has fully 
complied with the legal requirements. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING : Tuesday, 7th November 2017 

   

PRESENT : Cllrs. Taylor (Chair), Lewis (Vice-Chair), Lugg, Hanman, Morgan, 
D. Brown, Hansdot, Toleman, J. Brown, Fearn, Finnegan and 
Walford 
 
Officers in Attendance 
Mella McMahon, Development Control Manager 
Nick Jonathan, Solicitor, One Legal 
Adam Smith, Planning Officer 
Tony Wisdom, Democratic Services and Elections Officer 
 
 

APOLOGIES : Cllr Dee 
 

 
31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No declarations were made on this occasion. 
 

32. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 5th September 2017 were confirmed and signed 
by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

33. LATE MATERIAL  
 
Late material in respect of agenda item 5, application 17/01007/FUL, had been published on   the 
Council’s website and copies were circulated. 
 

34. LAND AROUND VICTORIA DOCK, GLOUCESTER DOCKS - 17/01007/FUL  
 
The Principal Planning Officer presented the report which detailed an application for 
the temporary use of Mariners Square and Victoria Dock for Christmas Markets and 
associated development. Proposal includes the erection of temporary buildings and 
plant. Permission sought for the Christmas and New Year periods 2017/18 and 
2018/19 from 31st October to 15th January. 
 
He drew Members’ attention to the late material which included an update on the 
weight to be given to the Joint Core Strategy and an amended Condition 8 to permit 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
07.11.17 

 

2 

the use of an amplified sound system to provide background seasonal music during 
the trading hours of the market stalls set out in Condition 5. 
 
Mr Chris Poole a local resident, addressed the Committee in opposition to the 
application. 
 
Mr Simon Metcalfe, Planning Consultant for Gloucester Quays, addressed the 
Committee in support of the application. 
 
Members were advised that the application was publicised through letters to 
residents, a site notice and a press notice.  
 
The Principal Planning Officer confirmed that the Environmental Health Officer was 
satisfied with the proposed conditions, as amended. He understood that complaints 
had been received at a previous event regarding loud music from the Big Bus and 
the generators for the ice rink. Amplified sound would be controlled by condition in 
this application and no ice rink was proposed in this application. 
 
Members expressed concern regarding access for residents and services, and 
called for a condition requiring the submission of a traffic management scheme 
prior to the commence of market stall trading. 
 
RESOLVED that the Development Control Manager be authorised to grant 
planning permission subject to the conditions in the report with Condition 8 
amended to read as set out below and an additional condition to require the 
submission and approval of a traffic management scheme prior to the 
commencement of market stall trading. 
 
Amended Condition 8 
No amplified sound system shall be used anywhere on the site except a) in 
association with the bandstand and b) to provide background seasonal music that 
shall be undertaken in accordance with the technical note received by the Local 
Planning Authority on 6th November 2017.  The amplified sound system for the 
bandstand shall not be used outside of the following hours: 1200 to 1830hrs 
Monday to Saturday, and 1200 to 1630hrs Sundays.  The amplified sound system 
for the background seasonal music shall not be used outside the trading hours of 
the market stalls set out in Condition 5. 
 

35. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
Consideration was given to a schedule of applications determined under delegated 
powers during the months of August and September 2017. 
 
RESOLVED that the schedule be noted. 
 

36. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Tuesday, 5th December 2017 at 6.00pm. 
 
 

Time of commencement:  6.00 pm  

Page 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
07.11.17 

 

3 

Time of conclusion:  6.38 pm  
Chair 

 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PT 

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL 
 
COMMITTEE : PLANNING 
 
DATE : 5TH DECEMBER 2017 
 
ADDRESS/LOCATION : LAND AT CLEARWATER DRIVE, 

QUEDGELEY 
 
APPLICATION NO. & WARD : 17/00729/FUL  
   SEVERNVALE 
 
EXPIRY DATE : 24TH OCTOBER 2017 
 
APPLICANT : EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING 

AGENCY 
 
PROPOSAL : ERECTION OF A PRIMARY SCHOOL AND 

ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE WITH 
CAR PARK AND PEDESTRIAN AND 
VEHICULAR ACCESS FROM CLEARWATER 
DRIVE AND  PEDESTRIAN ACCESS TO 
ELDERSFIELD CLOSE 

 
REPORT BY : JOANN MENEAUD 
 
NO. OF APPENDICES/ : 1.SITE LOCATION PLAN  
  2.ELEVATIONS 
  3. LANDSCAPE MASTERPLAN 
  4.LETTER FROM DIOCESE OF 

GLOUCESTER ACADEMIES TRUST 
  5.LETTER FROM EDUCATION AND SKILLS 

FUNDING AGENCY 
  6. LETTER FROM MCLOUGHLIN PLANNING 

7. FULL CONSULTATION RESPONSE FROM 
HIGHWAY AUTHORITY 

 
 
1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 The site comprises 2.17 hectares and is located to the north of Clearwater 

Drive and adjoins the City Council adopted open space encompassing the 
Canal walk to the north. The site is open and undeveloped and is used as 
open space. The site is overgrown in places and there are paths running 
across the site. The land is within the ownership of Gloucestershire County 
Council. The boundaries of the site adjoin residential properties in Clearwater 
Drive, Brockeridge Close, Aspen Drive, Eldersfield Close and Hasfield Close 
and the City Council’s adopted open space.  

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

PT 

1.2 The application proposes a two form entry primary school for 420 pupils and a 
42 place nursery school. A new vehicular access is proposed from Clearwater 
Drive serving a car park for staff and parents, together with a designated 
vehicle parent drop off and collection area. Two separate pedestrian accesses 
are proposed either side of the vehicular access from Clearwater Drive, 
together with a maintenance only access from Aspen Drive and a pedestrian 
access from Eldersfield Close. 

 
1.3 The school building is proposed to the rear of the car park. This is designed 

as a two storey building of 2,243sqm. To the eastern side of the site a multi 
use games area (muga) and grass pitch are proposed with a hard play area 
immediately behind the school building. A further smaller hard play area is 
proposed adjacent to the nursery element, with the land further north and west 
to be used as soft informal play, a habitat area and a forest school area. 

 
1.4 The application is to provide a permanent site for Clearwater Church of 

England Primary Academy which is currently based, in temporary 
accommodation at Hardwicke Parochial Primary School located at Poplar 
Way in Hardwicke. This new school opened in September 2017 with 30 
pupils.  

 
 
2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
2.1 The site forms part of an application for residential development granted 

consent in 1981 when the site was within the jurisdiction of Stroud District 
Council. Adjoining houses were built in the early 1990’s. Further details of the 
planning history of the site are considered at section 6. 

 
 
3.0 PLANNING POLICIES 
 
3.1 The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration 

of this application: 
 
Statutory Development Plan 
The statutory Development Plan for Gloucester remains the partially saved 
1983 City of Gloucester Local Plan (“1983 Local Plan"). However this plan 
does not include the area of Quedgeley which was under the jurisdiction of 
Stroud District Council, at that time. 

 
3.2 Paragraph 215 of the National Planning Policy Framework (“NPPF") states 

that ‘…due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency  with this framework (the closer the 
policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight 
that may be given.’ 
 

3.3 The 1983 Local Plan is more than thirty years old and, according to the 
Inspector who dealt with an appeal relating to the Peel Centre, St. Ann Way 
(13/00559/FUL), ‘…its sheer ages suggests it must be out of date…’ (par. 11 

Page 12



 

PT 

of the Inspector’s report). Members are advised that the 1983 Local Plan is 
out-of-date and superseded by later planning policy including the NPPF. 

 
Central Government Guidance - National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

3.4 This is the latest Government statement of planning policy and is a material 
consideration that should be given significant weight in determining this 
application.  
 
Decision-making 
The NPPF does not alter the requirement for applications to be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. In assessing and determining applications, Authorities should apply 
the presumption in favour of sustainable development. For decision-making, 
this means: 
 

 approving development proposals that accord with the development 
plan without delay; and  

 where the development plan is absent, silent, or relevant policies are 
out of date, granting planning permission unless: 
- any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and 

demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the 
policies in the NPPF as a whole; or  

- specific policies in the NPPF indicate development should be 
restricted.  

 
Authorities should look for solutions rather than problems and decision-takers 
should seek to approve applications for sustainable development where 
possible (paragraph 14). 
 
Core planning principles (paragraph 17) 
Planning should: 

  Be genuinely plan-led;  

  Be a creative exercise in ways to enhance and improve places;  

 Proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to 
deliver the homes, business and industrial units, infrastructure and 
thriving local places that the country needs;  

 Secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity; 

 Take account of the different roles and character of different areas; 

 Support the transition to a low carbon future, take account of flood risk 
and encourage the use of renewable resources; 

 Contribute to conserving and enhancing the natural environment and 
reducing pollution; 

 Encourage the effective us of land by reusing brownfield land; 

 Promote mixed use developments; 

 Conserve heritage assets in a manner appropriate to their significance; 

 Actively manage patterns of growth to make the fullest possible use of 
public transport, walking and cycling, and focus significant development 
in locations which are or can be made sustainable;  

Page 13



 

PT 

 Take account of and support local strategies to improve health, social 
and cultural wellbeing and deliver sufficient community and cultural 
facilities and services to meet local needs.  

 
The NPPF includes relevant policy on; 

 Ensuring a sufficient choice of school places 

 Promoting sustainable transport, including the statement that development 
should only be prevented on transport grounds whether the residual 
cumulative impacts of development are severe 

 Requiring good design and promoting healthy communities 

 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change, 
conserving and enhancing the natural environment, conserving and 
enhancing the historic environment 

 
The National Planning Practice Guidance has also been published to 
accompany and to expand on the National Planning Policy Framework.  
  
Emerging Development Plan 
 
 Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adoption 
Version 2017 

3.5 The City Council is currently working on a new Development Plan that will 
comprise the Joint Core Strategy for Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury (“JCS") and Gloucester City Plan (“City Plan”) once they are 
adopted. On adoption, the JCS and the City Plan will provide a revised 
planning policy framework for the Council. In the interim period, in accordance 
with paragraph 216 of the NPPF, weight can be attached to relevant policies 
in the emerging plans according to: 

 The stage of preparation of the emerging plan 

 The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies; 
and 

 The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan 
to the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework 

 
The JCS Inspector’s report was received in October 2017 and concluded that, 
subject to the main modifications and an immediate partial review, the JCS is 
sound and legally compliant. Therefore, in accordance with paragraph 216 of 
the NPPF, it is considered that the JCS policies can be given very significant 
weight. 

 
3.6 Relevant policies from the JCS include: 

SP1 - The need for new development  
SP2 – Distribution of new development  
SD3 – Sustainable design and construction 
SD4 – Design requirements 
SD6 – Landscape 
SD8 – Historic Environment 
SD9 – Biodiversity and geodiversity 
SD14 – Health and environmental quality 
INF1 –Transport network 

Page 14



 

PT 

INF2 – Flood risk management 
INF3 – Green Infrastructure 
INF4 – Social and community Infrastructure 
INF5 – Renewable energy 
INF6 – Infrastructure Delivery 

 
Gloucester City Plan 
The Gloucester City Plan (“City Plan”) is at a less advanced stage than the 
JCS. The City Plan will deliver the JCS at the local level and provide policies 
addressing local issues and opportunities in the City. The Draft Gloucester 
City Plan 2017 takes forward the results of previous consultations and was 
subject to consultation January and February 2017. The Plan is at an early 
stage and therefore carries limited weight  
 
The application is subject to a site specific allocation SA14 for the following 
options 
• 2 Form Entry Free School. 
• Or 15-30 dwellings plus enhanced public open space provision. 
• Large children’s play area. 

 
3.7 On adoption, the Joint Core Strategy and the City Plan will provide a revised 

planning policy framework for the Council. 
 

Gloucester Local Plan, Second Stage Deposit 2002  
3.8 Regard is also had to the 2002 Revised Deposit Draft Local Plan. This has 

been subjected to two comprehensive periods of public and stakeholder 
consultation and adopted by the Council for development control purposes. 
This cannot be saved as it is not a formally adopted plan, however with it 
being adopted for development control purposes it is still judged to be a 
material consideration, albeit of limited weight.  

 
2002 Plan policies 

3.9 Members are advised that the following “day-to-day” development 
management policies, which are not of a strategic nature and broadly accord 
with the policies contained in the NPPF, should be given some weight: 

 
FRP.1a – Flood risk 
FRP.6 – Surface water run-off 
FRP.8 – Renewable energy 
 FRP.9 – Light Pollution  
 FRP.10 – Noise 
 FRP.11 – Pollution 
 FRP.15 – Contaminated land 
BE.1 – Scale, massing and height 
BE.4 – Criteria for the layout, circulation and landscape of new development 
BE.5 – Community safety 
BE.6 – Access for all 
BE.7 – Architectural design 
BE.8 – Energy efficient development 
BE.12 – Landscape schemes 

Page 15



 

PT 

BE.13 – Landscape strategy  
BE.14 – Native species 
BE.21 – Safeguarding of amenity 
BE.31 – Preserving sites of archaeological interest 
BE.32 – Archaeological assessment 
BE.33 – Archaeological field evaluation 
BE.34 – Presumption in favour of preserving archaeology 
TR.1 – Travel plans and planning applications 
TR.2 - Travel plans – planning obligations 
TR.9 – Parking standards 
TR.11 – Provision of parking for people with disabilities 
TR.12 – Cycle parking standards 
TR.30 – School safety zone 
TR.31 – Road safety 
TR.33 – Providing for cyclists/pedestrians 
TR.34 – Cyclist safety 
SR.2 – Playing fields and recreational open space 
SR.3 – Intensive use facilities and floodlighting 
CS.2 – Provision of new community facilities 
BS.2 – Sites of nature conservation interest (a and b) and key wildlife sites 
BS.3 – Sites of nature conservation interest (c and d)  
B7 – Protected Species  
 B.10 – Trees and hedgerows on development sites 
ST.3 – Protecting Valued Open Spaces 
ST.7 – Urban Design Principles 

 
The site has specific allocations covered by policy CS9 and OS.7 
 
Policy CS9 -  Land Reserved for Primary Schools 
Sites at The Wheatridge and Clearwater Drive are reserved for new primary 
schools. 
 
The explanatory paragraph to policy CS9 states: 
 

The County Council has two sites in the city reserved for future use as 
primary schools and these are identified on the Proposal Map. Should 
the site at Clearwater Drive not be needed for a school it could provide 
useful additional public open space in an area where there is a 
considerable shortfall, and this is reflected in an allocation for this 
purpose under Policy OS.7. 

 
Policy OS.7 New Areas of Public Open Space 
The following sites are allocated for public open space as shown on the 
proposals map: 
 
Site 3 – Clearwater Drive 
 
The explanatory paragraph to policy OS 7 states: 
 

Page 16



 

PT 

A further opportunity to address the deficit of Public Open Space at 
Quedgeley may arise at Clearwater Drive. The land reserved here for a 
primary school may not be needed for this purpose and the site now 
has significant nature conservation value. If the site is no longer 
needed for a school then it could make a useful contribution to public 
open space in this area. 
Therefore this site is allocated for new public open space alongside its 
reservation for education use. 
 
 

Draft Clearwater Drive Supplementary Planning Document 
 
In 2008/9 the Council produced a draft supplementary planning document 
(SPD) for the wider site, including all the land now within both the City and 
County and Council ownership. The brief was intended to guide new 
development proposals for the site as the County Council had resolved that 
the site was no longer required for education purposes. The Brief proposed 
residential development on a small part of the site, approximately 1 hectare, 
with the remaining land to be used as public open space. 
 
Although it was subject to considerable consultation, the SPD was not 
formally agreed or adopted, therefore it carries limited weight.  

 
All policies can be viewed at the relevant website address:- Gloucester Local 
Plan policies – www.gloucester.gov.uk/planning; and Department of 
Community and Local Government planning policies - 
www.communities.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/planning/. 
 

 CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Highway Authority  

The Highway Authority raise no objection to the application but would require 
a number of conditions to be applied to any planning permission. Their 
comments are summarised in the report and a full copy of their comments are 
attached as an appendix. 

 
 

4.2 Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA)  
The site is within the Environment Agency's Flood Zone 1 although the north 
west area of the site, behind the existing bund is subject to surface water 
flooding. The applicant proposes to discharge the surface water from the 
development through the existing bund and into the wetland behind. 
 
Surface water naturally will flow to this area and this strategy will ensure the 
existing wetland receives water to remain an effective habitat. The additional 
surface runoff from the sports field will also flow to this area. Surface water will 
be attenuated in geocellular underground storage sufficient, together with the 
proposal to utilise permeable paving in the car parking area for the1 in 100 
year storm (including 40% increase for climate change). 
 

Page 17

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/planning
http://www.communities.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/planning/


 

PT 

The LLFA has no objection to this application but recommends conditions  
 
4.3 City Council Drainage Advisor  

No objection subject to the inclusion of conditions. 
 
4.4 Worcestershire Regulatory Services (Contaminated Land advisors)  

No objection but recommend conditions requiring further site investigation 
prior to the commencement of development and the application of standard 
land contamination conditions. 

 
4.5 Environment Agency 

Identify that the site is located on a historic landfill comprising building rubble and 
also is located on a Secondary Undifferentiated Aquifer. Recommend applying 
standard conditions. 

 
4.6 City Archaeologist 

No comments: The archaeological evaluation (trial trenching) has identified 
nothing of significance and the proposed development is unlikely to damage 
or destroy significant archaeological remains. 
 

4.7 Canal and River Trust  
No comment. 
 

4.8 Quedgeley Town Council  
The proposed development is beyond the scope of that envisaged when the 
site was originally set aside and the current proposals are an 
overdevelopment of the site. It will be detrimental of the quality of life of 
nearby residents and the character of the area, particularly the character of a 
two storey nature of the proposed development that would overlook nearby 
properties with the potential for loss of privacy. 
• Disruption would not be limited to school hours as it would be expected 
that the playing fields would be used outside school hours/term. 
• When compared with the 'Clearwater Drive Interim SPD' November 
2008 it extends beyond the scope of the area for potential development and 
infringes both the wetland and attenuation areas as well as infringing the area 
where it is proposed that the view would be maintained.  
• Heavily built up area with deficit of Open Spaces as noted in 
'Gloucester Open Space Strategy 2014-2019' with residents reaping 
significant benefit from access to Clearwater Drive.  
• The Transport Assessment provides comparison against dissimilar 
school environments and that Fieldcourt schools would be a better 
comparison and signpost the potential for congestion/parking issues; at least 
one school used for comparison has a large supermarket car park nearby that 
may mask the potential parking issue. Ongoing parking problems readily 
evident at local schools does not support the suggestion that most pupils 
would walk to school especially in the case of the nursery and younger terms 
when parents driving would not be expected to simply drop off their children in 
the car park.  
• Not all roads in the area have pavements therefore there is significant 
risk in using these routes for pedestrian access. Access arrangements appear 

Page 18



 

PT 

to remove existing parking arrangements again to the detriment of established 
residential properties. Should parents drop off at the pedestrian access point 
in Aspen Drive there would be potentially significant impact on residents’ 
ability to access or egress their properties. A repeat traffic survey conducted 
on a rainy winter day might have a significantly different result to the one that 
was conducted in June. While the Transport Assessment goes into detail in 
some areas there are significant gaps and incomplete in a number of areas. A 
proposed traffic management plan should be developed that includes the 
site's accessibility to construction traffic, delivery vehicles and coaches and 
their potential impact on local infrastructure should be considered.   
• Suggested that nursery/primary school places better placed at the point 
of need nearer to new build housing rather than in established residential 
areas in order to alleviate the potential for parking issues and the resultant 
adverse impact on the environment caused by this ecologically less sound 
proposal for a school of this scale.  
• Has research been conducted to ascertain whether any perceived 
need for additional primary school places as enduring or a temporary 'blip' 
that could be better managed by the expansion of existing schools and 
whether the proposal took into account the proposed school at Hunts Grove? 
It is suggested that the viability of existing schools could be impacted by the 
moving of even a few pupils to this proposed school.  
• The extent of the former fuel storage and pipeline in that area should 
be investigated and if necessary a decontamination and remediation plan 
developed. 
• Existing areas of run off and drainage from adjacent roads should be 
safeguarded.  
• The Department of Education provides guidelines for outdoor play 
areas per pupil but this application fails to take these into consideration and 
the current proposal is below the recommendations. 
 
Taking the above points into consideration it was resolved to object to the 
application as it is contrary to numerous planning policies within the 
Gloucester City Council Local Plan namely BE20, BE21, TR.3 and FRP.1a 
and within the NPPF ‘Core Planning Principles’ policy 17.  ‘Promoting 
Sustaining Transport’ policies 32, 34 & 37.  Item 7 of NPPF requires ‘Good 
Quality Design’ and this application fails to meet these objectives. 
 
The following issues have been raised within residents' comments and are 
supported by QTC's objection to this proposal: 
 
- Potential for flooding through loss of run off area that has alleviated risk to 
nearby properties 
- Adverse environmental impact 
- Increased noise  
- Increased congestion and parking problems 
- Loss of open space including trees and associated wildlife 
- Need for another school in this area is questioned 
- Potential devaluation of local properties 
- Invasion of privacy 
- Impact on residents' views 

Page 19



 

PT 

 
4.9 City Waste Management 

No comment but would expect collections to avoid school start and finish 
times. 

 
4.10 City Council Tree Officer The proposal will result in the loss of 

approximately 40 trees. The vast majority are small, self-set hawthorn trees of 
low/moderate amenity value. None of the trees would be worthy of a TPO, but 
being native trees, they do have conservation/wildlife value. Recommends 
suitable compensatory new tree planting. 

Observations regarding the proposed planting strategy (doc ref P17-0437-
06D) and landscape masterplan (doc ref P17 – 0437-04D).  

1. The proposed landscape buffer between the school and properties on 
Hasfield close is essentially a native hedge with small field maples and 
crab apples planted to be grown as trees within the hedge. This will 
provide a limited buffer. Recommend extra heavy standard trees planted 
between the buffer and the school site, refer to my attached plan. 

2. The proposed school ground trees are all trees that will ultimately be 
small/medium size. Recommend more ultimate large size, planted in 
appropriate locations. Perhaps a mix of faster growing trees for the short 
term, such as white poplar and silver birch as well slower growing ones for 
the longer term such as English oak. 

3. The proposed school ground trees include ornamental apples and pears, 
queries whether it would it be possible to used more local varieties of 
apples and pears, and perhaps plant them as a separate school orchard 
area.  

4. Unclear whether there will be extra new planting in the proposed forest 
school area. 

4.10 Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust 
No response at the time of writing the report.  
 

4.11 City Centre Improvement Officer (Environmental Protection)  
 

Originally commented that he had no concern with the findings of the 
submitted noise assessment subject to restrictions on floodlighting and the 
imposition of conditions.  However following further consideration has raised 
concerns with the scenarios tested and the detail and level of information 
provided and specifically: 
  

 The report has only assessed limited sporting activities with limited 
number of children, particularly considering class sizes of 30 children. 

 There is no assessment of the use of the muga or playing pitch outside 
of formal sports lessons, such as lunchtime and break time.  

 There is no assessment of spectator generated noise 

Page 20



 

PT 

 The report suggest that the events assessed are worst case scenario 
but this does not seem actually be the case given the above points. 

 It is also considered that the data relating to noise from vehicles 
travelling to and from the school along Clearwater Drive and vehicles 
using the proposed car park is not complete and does not show the 
noise contours in sufficient detail.  

 
 
5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS 
 
5.1 Neighbouring properties were notified by individual letter, a press notice was 

published and site notices were displayed. 
 

5.2 Over 260 representations of objection have been received raising the 
following issues: 
 
Open space 

 Open spaces should be protected 

 The area is very well used by local residents for recreation and very 
important for community life 

 The loss of the open space will have a big impact on local residents 

 We should be developing brownfield sites not green sites like this 

 If you compare Severnvale area to Kingsway you see that Kingsway 
has so much more open space- we should not be losing our limited 
space. 

 The Gloucester Open Space Strategy says that Severnvale ward has a 
significant shortfall of open space – this land should not be built upon 

 
 
 Highways 

 The Causeway and Clearwater Drive exit junctions get congested at 
peak times – driving across Quedgely is already difficult. 

 There will be congestion along Clearwater Drive and other roads. 

 There are no road improvements proposed. 

 Query whether parking restrictions on local roads will be required 

 There are no pavements in Eldersfield close which is dangerous for 
any pedestrians Question the need for a pedestrian access onto Aspen 
Drive and Eldersfield Close – parents will park here to drop off and 
collect pupils. The narrow roads and lack of pavements will be a safety 
issues to pedestrians and cause vehicle congestion.  

 Residents’ driveways will be used for parking and turning 

 Insufficient parking 

 Of the parking spaces, 20 are to used for staff leaving only 36 spaces 
for the parents of 420 pupils. Assumptions about the number of 
children walking to school is unrealistic – made worse by the fact that 
children going to the school are from outside the local area 

 Concerned if emergency access is required 

 Parents will not just drop off children but will want to park and take the 
children into school – especially young children  

Page 21



 

PT 

 Parents will be arriving much earlier than the close of school to wait 
and park up, extending the times of disruption and congestion 

 Speed bumps are breaking up as cars travel too fast over them  

 Important to provide dropped kerbs and even paths – I use a mobility 
scooter 

 Concerned at safety of existing children travelling to school with more 
traffic on local roads 

 
School Places 

 There is no demand from this local area for the school 

 Local children already attend their local schools. 

 Children attending this school are not from the Clearwater Drive area. 

 The apparent need for the school is from children outside of the 
immediate area. 

 New school should be built closer to Kingsway, Hunts Grove and 
Hardwicke where all the new building of houses is taking place. 

 The Department of Education provides guidelines for outdoor play 
areas per pupil but this application fails to take these into consideration 
and the current proposal is below the recommendations. 

 Previously decided that a school was not needed on this site  

 The site is too small – was previously informed that the play areas are 
too small for a school with this many pupils. 

 Any hiring out of the pitches would be unacceptable to residents with 
weekend and evening use 

 The plans have change a lot since the public information event  

 Was originally told this was going to be a single storey school for 200 
children 

 
 Flooding 

 May result in flooding to surrounding houses. 

 Gardens to houses were flooded in 2007 and concreting over the site, 
will increase the risk of he houses flooding. 

 The land acts as a flood plain holding water 

 The development of the site and lots of hard surface area will affect 
surface water on the site. 

 
Building Design 

 Would be an eyesore 

 Flat roof will allow for seagull nesting 

 Is a monster of a building 

 Was originally told this would be a single story building  

 There are no other 2 storey schools in the area 
 
Residential Amenity 

 Building would be overpowering and overbearing, out of character and 
out of scale 

 Will overlook surrounding gardens 

 Will affect the quality of life of local residents 

Page 22



 

PT 

 Building right up to the boundary of existing houses is not acceptable 

 Will massively change the quiet character of the area 

 Harmful impact on residents 

 Will increase pollution levels 

 Construction period would greatly impact on the local area, with noise, 
disturbance, heavy traffic etc 

 Residents are annoyed by the fence going up 
 
 
Wildlife/Trees 

 Area has a unique habitat, it should be protected and allowed to be a 
wildlife haven 

 I have seen over 72 bird species here , 20 species of butterfly, at least 
4 species of bats as well as slow worms, grass snakes, frogs, newts 
and toads 

 The developers survey was done during a dry spell and does not 
reflect the wintering wetland and bird activity. A further survey should 
be done 

 Loss of trees unacceptable 
 

 
5.4 Representation from City Councillor Hannah Norman raising objections on the 

following grounds: 

 Traffic Management, specifically the impact on local roads – the drop 
off system will not be suitable for parents of primary school children, 
living by a school I see fewer children walking to school than the 
transport data would suggest, 56 spaces for staff and parents is just 
not enough and there will be parking on local roads. Neither 
Meadowside or Beech Green have similar circumstances to this site 
but Fieldcourt is more similar and does experience traffic and parking 
problems. 

 The size of the plans presented for the proposed school – the public 
consultation proposed a single form entry school and it is understood 
that a much larger building is now proposed to comply with funding 
requirements. The size of building now proposed, and at two storeys, 
takes up much of the site and makes this site inappropriate.  

 Loss of Public Open Space – the site has been enjoyed and well used 
by local residents for over 20 years, the area has an inadequate level 
of open space and there is no compensation for its loss. The site is of 
wildlife interest and has been subject to flooding.  
Demand for School Places – considers that there is demand within 
existing schools to meet demand from Quedgeley and that it is actually 
demand from further afield (Hardwicke) that causes the significant 
increase in demand for places. There is no justification for providing the 
school on this site and a school should be provided closer to the new 
housing developments.  
 

5.5 Representation from County Councillor Mark Hawthorne raising objections on 
the following grounds: 

Page 23



 

PT 

 Loss of Public Open Space – been used by local residents for over 20 
years, area already lacking in open space, impact on wildlife, flooding 
concerns. 

 Impact on Local Roads – the schools chosen schools as traffic 
comparisons ie Meadowside and Beech Green have different 
circumstances to this proposal and the Fieldcourt schools would be 
better comparison where there is traffic chaos in the morning and 
evening on local roads not designed to take such high vehicle 
movements. 

 Size of the proposals – original proposal was for a single form entry 
school this has now doubled. Site is too small for a size of building 
proposed and there will be a visual impact together with an impact on 
residents quality of life.  

 Demand for school places – new schools are normally built within new 
residential developments. The planning statement highlights new build 
in the area at Sellars Bridge and Mayos Land and in considering the 
new housing taking place in Hardwicks, a new school should be built in 
a more suitable site not on the middle of a 20 year old housing estate.  

 
5.6 16 representations in support have been received raising the following issues:  

 

 Great opportunity for the local community, this piece of land has always 
been intended for educational purposes.  

 More Primary schools are needed in the area because of the growing 
population and the local schools are over subscribed  

 We need another primary - and secondary- school.  

 I intend to be a proactive, helpful & respectful part of the school 
community & that will take local residents into account; A residential 
area would benefit from a school being constructed.  

 As the housing stock increases, so should the infrastructure to support 
the people.  

 Given the number of family houses in the area, a primary school in 
easy walking distance would be a boon.  

 A school there is preferable to houses.  

 The Hardwicke/Quedgeley area and seen a huge amount of new 
housing in recent years, but, we are severely lacking in community 
services to accompany all the new families that are moving into the 
area. 

 More school places are urgently needed within Quedgeley and this is a 
good location-big enough and close to many children's homes to 
enable walking to school.  

 The proposed drawings of the building are aesthetically pleasing and 
will sit well on the site.  

 A good school will enhance local property prices. 

 Quedgeley is a green and open place and the loss of this land will not 
negatively impact upon the local area. It is, in essence, wasteland 
currently.  

 The school together with more community facilities are required. 

Page 24



 

PT 

 The provision of new community facilities have not kept up with all the 
house building 

 This is the most perfect setting for a new school, fresh air, close to the 
countryside 

 The school will reduce class numbers in other schools  

 Parking will only be an issue for a short period in the morning and then 
again in the afternoon – most people are at work- and many people will 
walk to school.  

 Should generate some needed employment for the area 
 

 
5.7 The full content of all correspondence on this application can be inspected at 

Herbert Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, or via the following link, prior to 
the Committee meeting: 
 
http://planningdocs.gloucester.gov.uk/default.aspx?custref=17/00729/FUL 
 

 
6.0 OFFICER OPINION 
 

Legislative background 
6.1  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 

the Local Planning Authority to determine planning applications in accordance 
with the Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

6.2    Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
states that in dealing with a planning application, the Local Planning Authority 
should have regard to the following: 
 

a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the 
application; 

b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application; and 

c) any other material considerations. 
 

6.3    It is considered that the main issues with regards to this application are as 
follows: 

 Site history and plan allocations 

 Need for a school 

 Existing use of the Site;  

 Loss/Development of Open Space 

 Design of the School Building 

 Residential amenity  

 Archaeology 

 Land Contamination 

 Drainage and Flood Risk 

 Levels 

 Trees and Landscaping 

 Ecology 

Page 25

http://planningdocs.gloucester.gov.uk/default.aspx?custref=17/00729/FUL


 

PT 

 External Lighting 

 Economic Considerations 

 Traffic and Transport 
 

Site History and Plan Allocations 
 
6.4 The various allocations for the site across various have been fully detailed 

within the policy section of the report. However further examination of this is 
required. 
 

6.5 The site was originally within the administrative boundary of Stroud District 
Council and was included within a much wider area granted permission for 
residential development in 1981 and a later consent in 1986 relating to the 
Glevum land. It is understood that the site was originally identified in the 
Stroud District–Gloucester City Council Quedgeley/Hardwicke Planning Policy 
Statement 1990 as a primary school site and an area of open space with play 
area.  
 

6.6 In February 1991 there was a Deed of Variation to the previously agreed legal 
Agreement that “reduced the amount of public open space to be dedicated on 
site and to acquire the additional land for school purposes”. he site then came 
within the administrative boundary of the City Council in April 1991 and the site 
was identified as being reserved for a school within the City of Gloucester 
(Additional Areas Post 1991 Boundary Extension) Local Plan Interim Adoption 
Copy October 1996.  
 

6.7 Since that time the site has been subject to a number of allocations for either a 
school or public open space or for residential development including public 
open space as set out below.: The allocations have reflected the changing 
position as to whether the site has been required for a school or not, as 
follows: 

 
Second Stage Deposit Local Plan 2002 
Land reserved for primary school or if the site is no longer need for a school 
then open space.  
 
Local Development Framework (Preferred Options) 2006 
Open space with limited residential development of 30 dwellings. 
 
 Draft Clearwater Drive Supplementary Planning Document 
Residential development of a small part of the site, approximately 1 hectare, 
with the remaining land to be used as public open space. 
 
Gloucester City Plan 2017 
 Two Form Entry Free School, or 
15 – 30 dwellings plus enhanced public open space provision including large 
children’s play area 

 
 

 

Page 26



 

PT 

The Need for a School  
6.8 Paragraph 72 of the NPPF relates specifically to proposals to provide new 

schools or extend existing schools. 
 
The Government attaches great importance to ensuring that a sufficient 
choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new 
communities. Local planning authorities should take a proactive, positive and 
collaborative approach to meeting this requirement, and to development that 
will widen choice in education. They should: 
● give great weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools; and 
● work with schools promoters to identify and resolve key planning issues 
before applications are submitted. 
 
Government Policy statement – planning for schools development dated 
August 2011 
 

6.9 This guidance details the Governments commitment  “to support the 
development of state funded schools and their delivery through the planning 
system”. 
This sets down the following principles:  
 

 •There should be a presumption in favour of the development of state-
funded schools, as expressed in the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 •Local authorities should give full and thorough consideration to the 
importance of enabling the development of state-funded schools in 
their planning decisions 

 Local authorities should make full use of their planning powers to 
support state-funded schools applications. 

 Local authorities should only impose conditions that clearly and 
demonstrably meet the tests set out in Circular 11/95. 

 Local authorities should ensure that the process for submitting and 
determining state-funded schools’ applications is as streamlined as 
possible. A refusal of any application for a state-funded school, or the 
imposition of conditions, will have to be clearly justified by the local 
planning authority. Given the strong policy support for improving state 
education, the Secretary of State 

 Appeals against any refusals of planning permission for state-funded 
schools should be treated as a priority. 

 Where a local planning authority refuses planning permission for a 
state-funded school, the Secretary of State will consider carefully 
whether to recover for his own determination appeals against the 
refusal of planning permission. 
 

The policy statement is available in full at the following link 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/
6316/1966097.pdf 
 
 

Page 27

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6316/1966097.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6316/1966097.pdf


 

PT 

6.10 Policy INF 4 of the JCS requires the provision of social and community 
infrastructure to meet the needs of local communities, stating that it should be 
centrally located to the population that it serves. Explanatory paragraph 5.5.1 
provides that everyone living and working in the JCS area should have access 
to facilities that meet their everyday needs and identifies that essential social 
and community infrastructure includes schools. This policy has more of an 
emphasis on providing new community provision together with new residential 
developments. However in the explanatory text it does state 
“infrastructure for health, social care and education are essential community 
facilities that will need to be assessed in accordance with the NPPF.” 
 

6.11 There are no policies in the 2002 Plan that relate specifically to the provision 
of new and/or additional educational facilities other than the recognition of 
land allocations for new primary schools at policy CS8. However supporting 
text at para 11.22 in relation to general education states that  
 
“when new schools or extensions to schools are proposed we will seek to 
ensure that proposals do not give rise to adverse effect on the surrounding 
neighbourhood, as set out in policies BE20, BE21 and TR31.” 

 
6.12 However schools are within the definition of community facilities and Policy 

CS2 relates to the provision of new community facilities: 
 

Policy CS.2 Provision of New Community Facilities 
Planning permission for new community facilities will be permitted: 
1. in or adjacent to a designated centre; or 
2. within residential areas in locations accessible by other means of transport 
than the private car, provided it is demonstrated that a suitable site is not 
available or that the need cannot feasibly be met in or adjacent to a 
designated centre. 
In residential development or mixed-use schemes the City Council will expect 
developers to reserve land in accessible and appropriate locations that are 
accessible by a choice of means of transport other than the private car, and 
provide appropriate community facilities or financially contribute towards their 
provision, to meet the needs of the future residents of such developments. 
 

6.13 Attached as an Appendix to this report are two letters, one from the Diocese 
of Gloucester Academies Trust and one form from the Applicant, Education 
and Skills Funding Agency. I understand that these letters have also been 
circulated to all Planning Committee Members. 

 
6.14  These letters provide important information regarding the requirement for 

school places. The supporting information demonstrates that there is a need 
for additional school places within the Quedgeley area referring to the need to 
find 240 places by 2020. Also, without a planning permission for a permanent 
school site for Clearwater primary, the funding for a temporary expansion on 
the temporary site at Hardwicke is unlikely to be forthcoming and the school 
may need to close. Additionally, further delay to this project would put 
considerable pressure on Gloucestershire County Council to identify and 
allocate sufficient school places for the next academic year. They conclude 

Page 28



 

PT 

that there is strong policy support for new schools and the application should 
be granted. 

 
6.15 It should also be noted that there have been 16 representations  submitted, 

supporting the development of the site for a school , quoting the lack of school 
places in the local area, the fact that the site has been allocated for a school 
for many years and the need to provide adequate community facilities to meet 
the demands of families.  
 

 6.16 Taking all the above into account and In accordance with Government 
guidance in the NPPF, JCS Policy INF4 and 2002 Plan policy CS.2 it is 
considered that the need for a new school has been demonstrated.  
 
Existing use of the site. 

6.17 It is clear from the letters that have been submitted, that the area forms an 
important amenity space for local residents. It is an open space however it is 
not a formally designated public open space, although it has had open access 
for residents for over 20 years.  
 

6.18 The planning statement submitted with the application states that  
 

The site currently comprises informal open space, which is laid out with 
grass and trees and crossed by informal footpaths. However, it is 
important to note that the land is not formally designated as public 
open space with access granted by the County Council on an informal 
basis only. 

 
6.19 The definition of open space within the NPPF is  

Open space: All open space of public value, including not just land, but 
also areas of water (such as rivers, canals, lakes and reservoirs) which 
offer important opportunities for sport and recreation and can act as a 
visual amenity. 

 
6.20 The Planning Practice Guidance refers to opens space as 

Open space, which includes all open space of public value, can take 
many forms, from formal sports pitches to open areas within a 
development, linear corridors and country parks however the land is 
not formally designated public open space.  

 
6.21 The interpretation within the Town and Country Planning act 1990 states: 

“open space” means any land laid out as a public garden, or used for 
the purposes of public recreation, or land which is a disused burial 
ground; 
 

6.22 On the basis of the above definitions, and advice from One Legal, I conclude 
that the existing use of the site is as open space.  

 
Loss/Development of Open Space 
 

Page 29



 

PT 

6.23 The site is within the land ownership of Gloucestershire County Council and it 
has been undeveloped for many years. It has never formally been adopted as 
public open space although the public have had full access onto and across  
the site.  
 

6.24 As I conclude above, the site constitutes open space in terms of the definition 
within the quoted legislation and planning guidance, however it is not public 
open space. Therefore the application requires assessment on the basis that 
the development of the site would result in the loss of open space. 
 

6.25 As a general principle, planning policies and guidance seek to protect open 
spaces, other than in exceptional circumstances and where open spaces are 
to be developed, replacement facilities should be provided unless an 
assessment identifies that it is no longer required.  
 
Paragraph 74 of the NPPF states  

Existing open space, sports and recreational buildings and land, 
including playing fields, should not be built on unless: 
● an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the 
open space, buildings or land to be surplus to requirements; or 
● the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced 
by equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a 
suitable location; or 
●the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, 
the needs for which clearly outweigh the loss. 

 
The NPPF also recognises the importance of open space to the health and 
well being of communities 
 

6.26 The Planning Policy Guidance advises on how open space should be taken 
into account in planning.  
 
Open space should be taken into account in planning for new development 
and considering proposals that may affect existing open space (see National 
Planning Policy Framework paragraphs 73-74). Open space, which includes 
all open space of public value, can take many forms, from formal sports 
pitches to open areas within a development, linear corridors and country 
parks. It can provide health and recreation benefits to people living and 
working nearby; have an ecological value and contribute to green 
infrastructure (see National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 114), as 
well as being an important part of the landscape and setting of built 
development, and an important component in the achievement of sustainable 
development (see National Planning Policy Framework paragraphs 6-10). 
 

6.27 Policy SR.2 within the Revised Deposit Local Plan is specifically relevant to 
proposals relating to open space.  
 
The City Council will oppose development proposals which involve the loss of 
playing fields, formal and informal recreational open space and their ancillary 
facilities unless: 

Page 30



 

PT 

1. The redevelopment of a small part of the site will secure the retention and 
improvements of the available sports and recreation facilities, in which case 
the retention and improvement of such facilities shall be subject to a planning 
obligation, or 
2. Alternative provision of facilities of equivalent benefit or better recreational 
standard in terms of quantity and quality is made available at another 
appropriate and equally accessible location, or 
3. A clear long term excess of sports pitch provision in the city and public 
open space in the area can be shown to exist, taking account of the 
recreational and amenity value of such provision, or 
4. The proposed development is for an indoor sports facility, which would 
provide sufficient community benefit to outweigh the loss of the playing field or 
recreational open space. 
 
Additionally policy ST3 in the 2002 Plan states that “land with recognised 
nature, landscape or recreational value will be protected appropriately 
according to its value unless there are exceptional circumstances” 

 
6.28 Similarly policy INF 3 of the JCS requires that the existing green infrastructure 

network of local and strategic importance be conserved and enhanced and 
that development proposals should contribute positively towards green 
infrastructure. Additionally that existing green infrastructure will be protected 
in a manner that reflects its contribution.  
 

6.29 The site has been accessible to the public and used for amenity and 
recreational purposes for well over 20 years and it is only recently, since 
August 2017, that the site has been fenced off. The application provides for 
some replacement open space provision within the grounds of the school, as 
set out at section 1.3 of the report, however this is not considered to be an 
equivalent or better provision in terms of quality and quantity as required by 
the NPPF.  

 
6.30 Furthermore there is a lack of open space within the Quedgeley area and 

particularly the Severnvale ward. This is recognised by the assessment of the 
ward within the Councils Open Space Strategy which states 
 

In total, the ward has 7.71ha of open space, a provision of 1.08ha per 
1000 population, which falls well short of the proposed open space 
standard of 2.8ha per 1000. 
 
An area of undeveloped land at Clearwater Drive is currently well used 
by residents for informal recreation, linking to the city council’s 
Clearwater Drive open space (QS9) and canalside park. This site is 
owned by the County Council and was originally reserved for a 
possible school site. However, there may be future plans to develop 
the site for housing. Any proposals will need to give consideration to 
the wildlife using the site and provision of open space would be 
required as part of the new development. 
 

 

Page 31



 

PT 

6.31 The development of this site for a school will result in the loss of open space 
and therefore conflicts with the above policies that seek to protect open 
space. Additionally it is also recognised that the Severnvale ward does have a 
significant under provision of open space and further loss would compound 
this.  

  
 
 Design of the School Building  
 
6.32 The NPPF states that new residential developments should be of high quality 

design, create attractive places to live, and respond to local character 
integrating into the local environment. Policy SD4 and SD14 of the JCS sets 
out requirements for high quality design. In the 2002 Plan policies including 
ST7, BE1, BE4, BE5, BE6 and BE7 seek to ensure that new developments 
are of good design  

 
 The school is designed as a predominantly two storey building, but 

incorporating a single storey element to the western end. The building is 
designed with a flat roof to a height of 7.4 metres 8 slightly higher at the 
entrance feature at 7.8 metres. It has a horizontal emphasis defined by the 
use of contrasting materials to each floor i.e. brickwork to the ground floor and 
timber cladding to the first floor. Metallic cladding is proposed to highlight 
other features including the main two storey entrance feature. 

 
6.33 1.2 metre high railings and matching gates to each of the access are 

proposed to the frontage of Clearwater Drive. All other boundaries would have 
1.8 metre high green weld mesh fencing.  A landscape buffer and tree 
planting is also proposed to the Southern boundary, most of the eastern 
boundary and part of the northern boundary. 

 
6.34 The school building will be visible from Clearwater Drive, from the Canal Path 

open space and from the surrounding residential properties. The flat roof 
design Is not in keeping with the pitched roof design of neighbouring houses 
however this design does keep the overall height of the building lower and 
result in less prominence and therefore less visual impact within the local 
area. Appropriate planting, as discussed later with the report, will also assist in 
providing a green setting to the building and its assimilation into the very open 
character of the site. 

 
6.35 I consider that the proposed scale and design of the school building is 

acceptable in this location. I have raised some concerns with the use of buff 
brick and requested a material sample board, however this has not been 
submitted to date 

 
 Residential Amenity 
 
6.36 Paragraph 17 of the NPPF provides that planning should always seek to 

secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and 
future occupants of land and buildings. This is reflected in Policy SD4 and 
SD14 of the JCS which requires that new development must cause no 

Page 32



 

PT 

unacceptable harm to local amenity including the amenity of neighbouring 
occupants and Policy BE.21 of the 2002 Plan which seeks to protect amenity.  

 
6.37 Many of the surrounding residential properties directly face onto and have 

views from windows into and across the site. There is no doubt that the 
outlook from these properties would change with the construction of the 
school. The school elevations facing boundaries contain widows to 
classrooms, however given the distances to boundaries (which at the closest 
point on the southern boundary is 20 metres from residential gardens), I do 
not consider that the building would result in unacceptable levels of 
overlooking. 

 
6.38 Taking into account the height of the proposed building, its siting, distance 

and location to the north of the closest properties, I consider that the overall 
relationship with adjoining properties would be acceptable and that the design 
of the building would not appear overly dominant, overbearing or result in 
overshadowing to surrounding dwellings.  

 
6.39 Therefore I consider that the physical impacts of the school building would not 

have an acceptable impact upon the amenity of surrounding residential 
properties. However an assessment of the other elements of the school and 
associated activity require further assessment. 

 
6.40 JCS Policy SD14 also requires that new development must not result in 

unacceptable levels of noise pollution and policy SD4 states that new 
development should avoid or mitigate potential disturbances including noise.  

 Policy FRP10 within the 2002 Plan states that planning permission will not be 
granted for development that would result in unacceptable levels of noise.  

 
6.41 The site is immediately adjacent to residential boundaries on the full extent of 

the southern and eastern boundaries and along part of the northern boundary. 
There is no doubt that the development of this site will generate a level of 
noise and disturbance to surrounding properties, not currently experienced. 

 The proposed plans include a variety of soft and hard play areas for children 
situated around the building together with a grass pitch and multi use games 
area (muga) proposed to the eastern side of the building. Of particular 
concern regarding the impact upon residents is the noise and disturbance 
associated with the use of the proposed muga and playing field. Both these 
facilities are located to the eastern boundary of the site and within very close 
proximity to the site boundaries which along much of their length is also 
immediately adjacent to existing residential properties in Hasfield Close, 
Eldersfield Close, Aspen Drive and Brockeridge Close. 

 
6.42 The plans indicate the edge of the pitch between 5 and 6 metres from the 

boundary of the site and muga just over 7 metres from the boundary. The 
boundary is immediately adjacent to residential property garden boundaries 
along most of it length. 

 
6.43 Fields in Trust, who are the operating name of the National Playing Fields 

Association, have produced guidance “Guidance for outdoor sport and Play: 

Page 33



 

PT 

Beyond the six acre standard” dated October 2015. This recommends a 30 
metre minimum separation between the activity zone of a muga and a 
residential boundary.  The City Council Supplementary Planning Guidance 
dated June 2001 “New Housing and Open Space” also requires a 30 metre 
buffer.  The explanatory note states “the purpose of a buffer zone is to provide 
a reasonable degree of separation between play or sport activity and nearby 
residential properties”. There is no suggested buffer zone for playing pitches 
in either document.  

 
6.44 In terms of this proposal there are approximately 50 dwellings that would be 

within 30 metres of the muga and playing pitch. The distance from the playing 
pitch to the closest garden boundary is at the closest point is just under                          
6 metres. And there are 4 properties where the dwelling itself is between 6 
and 7 metres from the pitch boundary. The distance from the muga to the 
closest garden boundary is just over 7 metre.  These distances are obviously 
well below the recommended 30 metres and therefore it is considered that 
surrounding properties will experience noise and disturbance from their use.  

 
6.45 Following a request from officers, the applicant has submitted a noise 

assessment. This has assessed specific examples of use of both the muga 
and the playing pitch. 

 
6.46 The muga has been assessed on the basis of its use by 10 children (i.e. a 5 

side football match), with a noise source from 5 children. The pitch has been 
assessed on the basis of 14 children (i.e. a seven a side match ), with a noise 
source from 7 children.   

 
6.47 The World Health Organisation Guidelines for Community Noise set out 

health-based guideline values for community noise, including recommended 
noise level values for the onset of sleep disturbance, annoyance and speech 
interference for the general population. Guideline values are provided for 
outdoor living areas, living rooms and bedrooms, for both continuous noise 
and discrete noise events: 
a. Living rooms (daytime) LAeq,16hour 35dB(A); 
b. Bedrooms(daytime) LAeq, 16hour 35dB(A); 
c. Bedrooms(night-time) LAeq, 16hour 30dB(A); 
d. Bedrooms (night-time) LAFmax 42dB(A); 
e. Bedrooms external (night-time) LAeq,8hour 55dB(A); and 
f. Gardens LAeq, 16hour 50dB(A) lower limit and 55 dB(A) upper limit. 
 

6.48 The report identifies that at the level of usage assessed; there are two 
properties that would experience noise at 50db, which is within the lower limit 
of the external space standards set by the WHO Guidelines.  However with 
more intensive use of the facilities, the level of noise would be expected to 
rise and potentially affect additional properties. There about 10 properties 
where noise levels are within the 45 – 49 db range, 

 
6.49 The Councils City Centre Improvement Officer (Environmental Protection) has 

raised a number of concerns with the level of information within the noise 
assessment, as set out in detail in his comments at section 4.11.  

Page 34



 

PT 

 
6.50 Officers have advised the applicant of concerns regarding the potential noise 

and disturbance to surrounding properties and suggested that the applicant 
may wish to consider an amended layout with the noisiest elements of the 
proposal moved away from the sensitive residential boundaries. However the 
applicant wishes the application to proceed for Committee determination on 
the basis of the plans as submitted.  

 
6.51 One of the core planning principles of the NPPF is to always seek to secure 

high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future 
occupants of land and buildings. Additionally the NPPF stresses the 
importance of good design and that states planning should contribute to 
making places better for people, that developments should function well and 
add to the overall quality of the area and that planning should address the 
connections between people, places and the integration of new development 
into the natural built and historic environment. Furthermore it states that 
decisions should plan positively for the provision of community facilities to 
enhance the sustainability of communities and residential environments and 
ensure and integrated approach to considering the location of housing and 
community facilities. 

 
6.52 In accordance with the NPPF, Policy SD4 of the JCS promotes high quality 

design and sets down principles that should be followed. It requires that 
development should make a positive contribution to providing better places for 
communities. It recognises that high quality and well thought out design, 
tailored to meet the needs of people and location, is a key element in 
producing attractive, sustainable places in which people will want to live, work, 
play and relax.  The principle of good design is also promoted in polices in the 
2002 Plan including BE.4 and BE.7. 

 
6.53 I note that the design and access statement also considers a number of 

options for the development of the site including a building of a different 
design and shape and different positioning across the site. As with most sites 
there are a number of constraints including surface water flooding, ecology, 
levels and residential boundaries, and these will all influence the overall 
design process. I considered that the proposed design and layout has given 
insufficient importance to reducing the impact of the development upon the 
surrounding residents. As detailed above, the proposed muga and marked out 
playing pitch are on the least favourable part of the site in terms of residential 
amenity being within a few metres of the boundary of the site 

 
6.54 I do consider that the overall layout of the school conflicts with the above 

design guidance and has not been well thought out or designed to respect 
and integrate with the existing built environment, would not make a positive 
contribution and does not address the sensitive nature of the adjoining 
residential boundaries. I therefore conclude that the scheme represent a poor 
overall design in terms of layout that would result in harm to the amenity of 
surrounding residential properties.  
 
Archaeology 

Page 35



 

PT 

6.56 The NPPF requires that in determining applications, Authorities should take 
account of; 
▪ the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage 
assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 
▪ the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to 
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; 
▪ the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local 
character and distinctiveness. 
 

6.57 Policies BE31, 32, 33, 34, 36 and 37 of the 2002 plan lay down the criteria for 
assessing sites with archaeological interest, together with the requirements for 
site evaluation and recording. Policy BE23 seeks to ensure that development 
does not adversely affect the setting of listed buildings. JCS Policy SD8 
stresses the importance of heritage assets and their contribution to local 
character and identity. Furthermore the policy requires that heritage assets 
and their settings are conserved and enhanced as appropriate to their 
significance. 
 

6.58 An evaluation of the application site has already been undertaken with the 
excavation of trenches across the site in August. As referred to above in the 
Citys Archaeologist comments, nothing of significance was found and 
therefore no further archaeological assessment or investigation is required.  
 
 
Land Contamination 

6.59 Policy SD14 of the JCS and Policy FRP15 of the 2002 Plan require that 
development proposals incorporate the investigation and remediation of any 
land contamination 
 

6.60 The City Council’s Contaminated Land Advisors (WRS) has reviewed the   
submitted documentation. They have also identified that the historic maps 
show that the proposed development is adjacent to Quedgeley landfill site, 
and that the Environment Agency’s website shows that the landfill extends 
over the site of the proposed development. However they note that the 
submitted documents did not identify this.  
 

6.61 Following the submission of further information they note that during the site 
investigations undertaken, no evidence of significant made ground or landfill 
has been encountered and that the additional 5 ground gas monitoring visits 
proposed by the applicant are considered necessary, given the uncertainty to 
characterise the ground gas regime at the site together with additional soil 
testing. Conditions are recommended requiring further site investigation prior 
to the commencement of any development of the site and the application of 
the standard contamination conditions.  
 
Drainage and Flood Risk 

6.62 The NPPF requires that development is directed to the areas at lowest risk of 
flooding, that new development should take the opportunities to reduce the 
causes or impacts of flooding, should not increase flood risk elsewhere and 
take account of climate change. Policy INF2 of the JCS reflects the NPPF, 

Page 36



 

PT 

applying a risk based sequential approach, requiring new development to 
contribute to a reduction in flood risk and requiring the use of sustainable 
drainage systems. Policy FRP1a of the 2002 Plan also promotes the risk 
based approach and policy FRP6 requires the provision of appropriate surface 
water disposal 
 

6.63 The site lies within Flood Zone 1 which is land with the lowest probability of 
flooding, however given that the site area is over a hectare, a flood risk 
assessment has been undertaken. The site is subject to some surface water 
flooding and ground water flooding.   
 

6.64 The submitted proposals have been assessed by the City Council’s Drainage 
Adviser and Gloucestershire County Council in their role as the Local Lead 
Flood Authority. They advise that the applicant proposes to discharge the 
surface water from the development at a controlled rate through the existing 
bund and into the wetland behind. Surface water naturally will flow to this area 
and this strategy will ensure the existing wetland receives water to remain an 
effective habitat. The additional surface runoff from the sports field will also 
flow to this area. Surface water will be attenuated in geocellular underground 
storage sufficient, together with the proposal to utilise permeable paving in the 
car parking area for the 1 in 100 year storm (including 40% increase for 
climate change). 
 

6.65 This is considered acceptable subject to conditions requiring full details of the 
proposed surface water drainage scheme, timetable for implementation and a 
management and maintenance plan.  
 
Levels 

6.66 The site is quite undulating and considerable level changes across the site are 
proposed. The applicant has provided a “cut and fill plan” which details these  
works, Generally land is being lowered within the central part of the site and 
the land to the east and west being increased, which includes providing a 
level area to the footprint of the school and the adjoining areas including the 
pitch and  muga. There is the potential for run off from the areas along the 
eastern boundary to the adjacent residential garden boundaries. Additionally it 
is not clear how level changes may impact on the areas along the boundary of 
the grass pitch. The change in levels here appears to be about 30cm closest 
to the boundary so further clarification on this has been requested from the 
applicant. 

 
6.67 Subject to additional information indicating that the proposal will not result in 

adverse runoff implications for adjacent residential properties, it is considered 
that the proposal is acceptable in terms of flood risk and drainage 
implications. 

 
6.68 Trees and Landscaping 

Guidance in the NPPF seeks to conserve and enhance the natural 
environment, promote biodiversity and protect wildlife. policy B10 of the 2002 
Plan requires the retention of important trees and hedgerows and 

Page 37



 

PT 

compensatory replacement when this is not possible. JCS Policy INF3 
provides that green infrastructure will be conserved and enhanced.  

 
All trees within the main part of the site are to be removed. None of the trees 
are of particular value individually, and are not of a quality to warrant a Tree 
Preservation Order. However it is accepted that together as a group and a 
feature on the site, they do have some amenity value and also some 
ecological value. The trees to the western part of the site are to be retained  

 
6.69 The landscape masterplan details proposed replacement tree planting across 

the site. The Landscape Adviser has suggested some alternative tree species 
and planting which provides more wildlife habitat, educational potential and is 
more in keeping with the semi natural setting. Additional further planting would 
be required to soften the edges of the site particularly along the car park 
frontage and some larger trees would help integrate the site with the 
Canaslide open space.   

 
6.70 It is considered that landscaping details could be dealt with by a condition 

requiring the submission of amended information encompassing the 
suggestions made by the Landscape Adviser.  

 
 Ecology 
6.71 Guidance in the NPPF seeks to conserve and enhance the natural 

environment, promote biodiversity and protect wildlife. Policies B7 and B.8 of 
the 2002 Plan and SD9 of the JCS, also require development to contribute 
positively to biodiversity and for necessary mitigation to be provided. 

 
6.72 The site, together with the land to the North and the remaining County Council 

land to the west is designated as a key Wildlife Site. In relation to locally 
designated sites, such as Key Wildlife sites, policy SD9 of the JCS states: 
Development within locally designated site will not be permitted where it 
would have an adverse impact on the registered interest features or criteria 
for which the site was listed, and harm cannot be avoided or satisfactorily 
mitigated. Similarly policy B2 and B3 of the 2002 Plan seek to protect locally 
designated sites and require mitigation of compensatory habitats to ensure 
that the long term biodiversity value of the area is enhanced.  

 
6.73 The application includes a Protected Species Survey Report, Great Crested 

Newt addendum and an Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement Plan. The 
site has specific amphibian interest; specifically, frog, toad and smooth newt. 
The site also has a high population of slow worms and also comprises a bat 
foraging area. Work has already been undertaken to clear the site of slow 
worms and reptiles and reptile proof fencing is currently in position.  

 
6.74 The submitted reports have been assessed by the Council’s Ecological 

Adviser who concludes that the proposed mitigation plan is acceptable subject 
to “an area of suitable habitat for amphibians and reptiles, available now and 
in the future is secured and agreed”. The adviser identifies that the creation a 
pond would enhance the habitat for amphibians and recommends conditions 
requiring, a full landscape and ecological management plan, a construction 

Page 38



 

PT 

method plan and full details of lighting proposed on the site. Subject to this, it 
is considered that the proposed development is acceptable in terms of 
implications for ecology. 

 
 External Lighting 
6.75 The submitted external lighting plan submitted with the application proposes a 

variety of lighting comprising freestanding lighting to the car park and around 
the building and for individual lights to be attached to the building and fencing. 
Further bollard lighting is proposed to the walkway from the building to the 
pedestrian access to the eastern boundary. The pedestrian access is now 
proposed to Eldersfield Close and the lighting plan has not been updated to 
reflect this. The submitted details do not provide full details of heights of the 
free standing lights and further clarification has been sought from the agent. 
Full details of the lighting proposals are required to be able to consider any 
potential impacts upon both residential amenity and ecology; however it is 
considered that these details could be dealt with by a condition requiring the 
submission of further information.  

 
 
 Economic considerations 
6.76 The development of the school would create jobs 19 full time and 29 part time 

jobs adding to local employment opportunities while the  construction phase 
would also support employment opportunities. Additionally, the provision for 
an additional primary school is likely to have benefits for educational 
achievements which will also be of benefit for and therefore the proposal 
would have some economic benefit for the economy. In the context of the 
NPPF advice that ‘significant weight should be placed on the need to support 
economic growth through the planning system’, this adds some weight to the 
case for granting permission. 

 
 
 Traffic and Transport  
6.77 The Highway Authority comment that whilst the review has raised some 

concerns regarding trip rate methodology, the County Council is satisfied that 
there is sufficient capacity within the network study area to accommodate 
traffic generated by the proposed development.  
 

6.78 The car park provision and layout is sufficient for drop-off/pick-ups and 
provides adequate provision for the peak parking demand. The circulatory 
nature of the car park is legible with a clearly defined drop-off area that will be 
managed by school staff. Therefore the school has provided adequate parking 
provision to minimise prejudicial or ad-hoc parking occurring upon the Local 
Estate Roads. However, this does not mean that no on-street parking will 
occur. It is expected that some on-street parking may occur, however this will 
occur with a short spike of activity before quickly returning to normal without 
adversely affecting the operation and safety of the highway. The school 
cannot prevent people from parking upon the highway, which does not feature 
parking restrictions, but the Highway Authority considers that applicant has 
provided adequate means to reasonably manage the impact. The School 

Page 39



 

PT 

Travel Plan is generally acceptable subject to the identified issues being 
addressed when the full School Travel Plan is submitted. 
 

6.79 The Highway Authority considers that the transport and traffic implications of 
the proposal are acceptable subject to conditions dealing with the following 
matters: 

 Requirement for a construction method statement 

 Access road material and position of gates onto Clearwater Drive. 

 Provision of parking for cars, cycles and scooters in place before the 
building is opened and thereafter maintained. 

 Provision of tactile paving at identified crossing points 

 Car parking management scheme to be agreed 

 Provision of disabled parking 

 Provision of pedestrian and maintenance accesses.  

 Requirement for a travel plan 

 Requirement for a school safety zone.  
 
  
7.0 CONCLUSIONS 
  
7.1 The development of this site raises a number of planning issues that require 

careful balancing.  
 
7.2 The site was originally identified for the erection of a school in 1990 but an 

application to actually build a school on the site has not been submitted until 
now. Supporting information demonstrates that there is now a need for 
additional school places in the local area and Government policy strongly 
promotes the presumption in favour of development for schools. The provision 
of a new school is, in principle, a significant public and community benefit of 
the application, and one which should be afforded significant positive weight in 
the planning balance. 

 
7.3 However the site has remained undeveloped and it is currently used, and has 

been used for many years, by the local community, as open space. It is clear 
from the comments, and number of representations submitted by local 
residents, that it is a valued and important amenity within the local area. It is 
also recognised that the local area has a deficit of open space. I therefore 
conclude that the loss of the open space with insufficient mitigation or 
replacement represents a significant loss to the local community and should 
be afforded considerable negative weight in the planning balance. 

 
7.4 There are serious concerns with the design of the layout of the school and its 

facilities. The proposed layout fails to reflect local design policies and 
guidance in the NPPF which promotes high quality design and requires that 
new developments make a positive contribution to communities and integrate 
with existing environments. The proposed playing facilities are to be sited in 
the least favourable part of the site in terms of their closeness and relationship 
to the surrounding residential properties. The Fields in Trust Guidance and the 
Councils guidance both recommend a 30 metre buffer between a muga and a 
residential boundary to prevent nuisance. A noise report has been submitted 

Page 40



 

PT 

however there are concerns with the scenarios that have been assessed and 
the level of information that is includes.   Overall I consider that the proposed 
layout of the site has failed to address the importance of protecting amenity of 
surrounding residential properties that will experience noise and disturbance 
from the site. 

 
7.5 The elevational design of the building is considered acceptable in this location 

and should have an acceptable relationship with the neighbouring residential 
properties in terms of its physical impacts and have an acceptable 
appearance from Clearwater Drive and from the Canalside Walk 

 
7.6 The Highway Authority conclude that the proposal is acceptable in terms of 

highway and parking matters subject to the conditions as stated.  
 
7.7 Matters relating to ecology, levels, materials and some discrepancies and 

conflict within the plans have not yet been fully addressed. Other issues 
including contamination, lighting, drainage, landscaping could be appropriately 
dealt with by conditions. 

 
7.8 The school will generate local employment opportunities, during and after 

construction and this has some limited weight in the overall consideration of 
the application.  

 
7.9 Therefore in terms of the assessment of the principal issues, I consider that 

the benefits arising from the provision of a new school are outweighed by the 
loss of open space, and the harm to residential amenity arising from the poor 
design of the proposed layout of the school buildings and facilities. 

 
 
8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE GROWTH AND DELIVERY  MANAGER 
 

That subject to clarification and resolution of the outstanding issues relating to 
ecology, levels, materials and some discrepancies and conflict with the 
submitted plans, 

 
That planning permission is refused for the following reasons: 

 
Refusal Reason 1 
The development of this site would result in the loss of an important open 
space highly valued by local residents, in an area where there is already a 
shortfall of open space. Insufficient mitigation or replacement facility has been 
proposed to compensate for this loss. The proposal is therefore contrary to 
Policy INF3 of the Joint Core Strategy, Adoption Version 2017, Policy SR2, 
ST3 and BE21 of the Gloucester City Council Revised Deposit Local Plan 
2002 and guidance within the Planning Policy Guidance and the NPPF 
 
Refusal Reason 2 
The layout of the proposal constitutes poor design in that it proposes to site 
the multi use games area and playing pitches in close proximity to 
neighbouring dwellings and therefore is likely to result in unacceptable noise 

Page 41



 

PT 

and general disturbance for nearby dwellings. Therefore it is considered that 
the proposal is contrary to Policies SD4 and SD14 of the Joint Core Strategy, 
Adoption Version 2017 and Policies ST7, BE4, BE7, BE21 and FRP10 of 
Gloucester City Council Revised Deposit Local Plan 2002, and contrary to the 
Gloucester City Council Supplementary Planning Guidance “New Housing 
and Open Space and the guidance and principles set down within the 
Planning Policy Guidance and the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
 
 
 
Decision:   ..........................................................................................................  
 
Notes:   ..............................................................................................................  
 
 ...........................................................................................................................  
 
 ...........................................................................................................................  
 
Person to contact: Joann Meneaud 

        (Tel: 396787) 
 

Page 42



NORTH

This drawing is the copyright of Roberts Limbrick 
Ltd and should not be reproduced in whole or in 
part or used in any manner  whatsoever without
their written permission.
Do Not scale off this drawing, use only figured 
dimensions and report any discrepancies or 
omissions to the Architect immediately.

Rev. Date Description

PROJECT

CLIENT

DRAWING

STATUS

SCALE

DATE AUTHOR

ROBERTS LIMBRICK LTD

The Carriage Building, Bruton Way
Gloucester, GL1 1DG

T. 03333 405 500
mail@robertslimbrick.com
www. robertslimbrick.com

Registered Office:   England No. 06658029

The Estates Office 25 - 26 Gold Tops 
Newport, NP20 4PG

ORIGINATOR NO

PROJECT | ORIGINATOR | ZONE | LEVEL | TYPE | ROLE | NUMBER

DRAWING NUMBER:

1 : 1250@A3

19
/07

/20
17

 15
:01

:39

P2

Proposed Site Location Plan

Clearwater C of E Primary School

KIER Central

05/31/17 BP

PLANNING

8302

8302-RLL-A-PL01

P1 28.06.2017 Issued For Planning
P2 19.07.2017 Issued for Planning

P
age 43



P
age 44



Revisions:
First Issue- 23/05/2017 TH
A- (25/05/2017) Minor amendments
B - (15/06/2017) Pedestrian access route amended
C- (26/06/2017) Various minor amendsments
D- (03/07/2017) Amendments due to drainage comments 
- existing bund retained and landscape amended to suit
E- (24/07/2017) Proposed spot levels and lighting locations added
F- (10/08/2017) Existing levels added. Parking bays changed to 
block paving

 RS

UP

UP

Kitchen

02

Chair Store /

Servery

04

Reception

WC

05

Reception Class

06

Store

08

Nursery

Playspace

09

Nursery

WC

10

Store

11

Hygiene Room

12

Nursery

Group

Room

13

Head Teacher

14

Meeting

Room

15

Store

16
Finance

Office

17

Acc. WC

18

Repro

19

Entrance

22

Studio

23

Main Hall

24

Lift

25

Library

26

Practical

27

Kitchen

28

Store

29

Group

Room

30

Group

Room

31

Year 2 Class

32

Year 1 Class

33

Store

69

Store

70

Store

71

Store

72

Year 1 Class

73

Year 2 Class

74

Server

Room

75

Electrics

76

Plant Room

77

SEN Room

78

SEN Room

80

Pupil WC

82

Pupil WC

83

Cloak

84

Cloak

85

Circulation

86

WC

92WC

93WC

94

General Office

99

Store

100

Circulation

101

Circulation

102

Circulation

103

Circulation

104

Circulation

109

Circulation

110

Store

113

Breakout

114

WC Lobby

116

WC

117

Kitchen Store

118

Circulation

121

Circulation

122

Cleaners

126

PE Store

127

Grass Pitch
mini soccer

55 x 37m with run-off

MUGA

Soft Informal

Hard Play

33 x 22m

Landscape buffer

Outdoor
Classroom

Habitat Area

Forest School
Area

Grass mounds

Seating &
Picnic Area

Bin
Store

Hard Play 
Nursery &
Reception

Cycle & Scooter
Parking

(20no. cycle spaces &
60no. scooter spaces)

Visitor Cycle
Parking

(6no. cycle spaces)

Area of existing scrub
and grassland to be
retained & enhanced

Gates for
Maintenance
Access Only

1:20

1:20

1:22

1:42

1:100

1:14

11.660m

12.600m
11.300m

11.300m

11.900m

11.800m

10.380m

9.500m

11.500m

12.200m

11.300m

11.900m

12.400m

11.300m

9.700m

11.500m

10.400m

1:20

12.500m

10.000m

10.600m

9.500m

10.060m

12.400m

10.700m

1:70

10.000m

12.100m

1:108

1:77

10.500m

12.000m

11.600m

12.130m

11.000m

1:18

12.210m

9.500m

9.500m

11.198m

11.300m

11.800m

12.780m

11.100m

10.900m

12.200m

12.300m

11.747m

1:55

12.530m

12.330m

1:4

1:80

1:60

1:6

1:7

1:23

11.300m

11.200m

11.100m

1:4

1:3

FFL 11.500m

1:3

10.500m

11.400m
11.000m

11.400m

1:3

1:
3

1:3

10.000m

10.000m

10.500m

9.190m

9.130m

9.000m

8.810m

9.010m

8.840m

9.100m

9.640m

11.000m

12.540m

11.400m

12.600m11.300m

9.640m

11.900m

10.540m

10.380m

9.500m

11.090m

12.200m

11.850m

11.900m

12.090m

10.900m

9.620m

11.420m

10.380m

10.620m

9.580m

10.880m

9.500m

10.060m

12.400m

10.700m

9.910m

12.100m

10.110m

11.630m

11.610m

12.130m

10.650m

11.850m

9.500m

9.500m

10.64m

11.300m

11.800m

12.510m

9.750m

9.660m

11.640m

12.540m

11.330m 11.990m

12.330m

9.950m

9.970m

10.500m

10.440m

10.830m10.430m

10.660m

9.660m

9.780m

9.800m

9.190m

9.130m

9.000m

8.810m

9.010m

8.840m

9.100m

12.300m

9.640m

9.000m

Copyright Pegasus Planning Group Ltd. Crown copyright, All rights reserved. 2017 Emapsite Licence number 0100031673. Ordnance Survey Copyright Licence number 100042093. Promap  Licence number 100020449  . 
Pegasus accepts no liability for any use of this document other than for its original purpose, or by the original client, or following Pegasus' express agreement to such use.    T 01285641717      www.pegasuspg.co.uk

PLANNING  |  DESIGN  |  ENVIRONMENT  |  ECONOMICS 

Clearwater C of E Primary 
School

Landscape Masterplan

Client:   Kier

DRWG No: P17-0437_04 Sheet No:_ REV: F

Drawn by : TH Approved by: TH/JP

Date: 10/08/2017

Scale: 1:250@ A0
    (1:500@ A1)

HARD LANDSCAPE

Existing vegetation to be retained

Proposed trees: Entrance
- planted into 300mm topsoil (reused) & 600mm subsoil

Landscape buffer - native tree & shrub planting
- with 300mm topsoil (reused)

Native shrub planting
- with 300mm topsoil (reused)

Ornamental planting
- with 450mm topsoil (reused)

Amenity grass
- with 150mm topsoil (reused)

Wildflower grass
- with 50-100mm topsoil (reused)

Wildflower grass suitable for wet soils
- to improve existing grassland area

Hedgerow to Forest School Boundary (with chestnut pale fence along 
western edge) - with 300mm topsoil (reused)

Block paving - entrance
- concrete block paving in buff / grey mix e.g Tobermore 
Tegula 208/172/104 x 173 x 80mm in Cedar or similar

SOFT LANDSCAPE

Asphalt - footpaths, playground and MUGA
- with pcc edging

Asphalt - car park
- with pcc half battered kerb

Self binding gravel
- golden self binding gravel with timber edge  

Steps 
- textured concrete steps with flag tread (with visibility band) and riser, buff colour

Wide terraced steps
- 600mm wide in-situ concrete steps with verticle timber post edge

BOUNDARIES & FENCING

Security fencing with matching vehicle and pedestrian gates
-1.8m high green weld mesh

Reused flat top metal railings - 1.25m high, dark grey. Legacy item 
from temporary school site. Approx. 22lm of legacy railings

Timber picket fence 
- nursery & reception, 1m high

MUGA fencing
- 1.8m high dark green weld mesh sports fencing with 
matching pedestrian gate

Handrail to steps
- tubular steel handrails, powder coated dark grey. 1000mm 
high handrail with mid-rail at 500mm.

Fencing to bin store
- close board timber fence. 1.8m high with matching gates

Tactile paving
- concrete corduroy paving, buff colour.

Retaining walls
- to engineers specification

FURNITURE

Picnic benches
- timber 'A' frame picnic benches. Refer to FF&E specification

Benches
- refer to FF&E specification

Cycle Stands
- Sheffield cycle stand. Powder coated dark grey. Refer to 
FF&E specification

Scooter Racks
- doubled side scooter rack (20no. spaces). Powder coated 
dark blue. Refer to FF&E specification

FUTURE ITEMS (to be provided by DGAT)

Trim trail

Spiritual garden

Nature trail features

Embankment slide

Earthworks
(mounds and banks. Refer to engineers details)

Native Hedgerow
- with 300mm topsoil (reused)

Proposed tree: Entrance Feature Tree
- planted into 300mm topsoil (reused) & 600mm subsoil

Proposed trees: Clearwater Drive Frontage
- planted into 300mm topsoil (reused) & 600mm subsoil

Proposed trees: School Grounds
- planted into 300mm topsoil (reused) & 600mm subsoil

Proposed trees: Forest School Area
- planted into 300mm topsoil (reused) & 600mm subsoil

Hibernaculum
Refer to ecologists specifcation

Flat top metal railings with matching vehicle and pedestrian gates
- 1.25m high, dark grey 

Long mown grass
- with 150mm topsoil (reused)

Fencing to west side of hedge to Forest School Boundary
- Chestnut pale timber fence. 1.2m high with timber gate

Root barrier to protect services. eg ReRoot 1000 by GreenBlue Urban or similar. 
Exact length to be confirmed by engineers specification

LIGHTING - refer to Method External Lighting Proposals

Lighting column location

Lighting bollard location - 2.4m high

Lighting bollard location

Block paving - car parking bays
- porous concrete block paving to parking bays. To engineers 
specification

LEVELS - to be read in conjunction with 
engineers proposals

Proposed levels

Existing levels

Proposed gradients and direction of fall

12.500m

1:3

12.500m

Stage: Planning

0 10m

P
age 45



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16 November 2017 

 
Dear Ms Meneaud 

 
DGAT Response to Planning Recommendation 

 

In 2015 Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) approached the Trust to request they consider 

submitting an application for a Free School, to open as soon as possible, in order to resolve the 

impending primary school places crisis within the Quedgeley area.  The Local Authority (LA) was 

highly supportive of the Free School bid as this was to address an urgent basic need issue.  The LA 

also put forward the site at Clearwater Drive which was owned by GCC and had been earmarked as 

a primary school site for at least the last 20 years.  The Trust agreed, that if the bid was successful it 

would endeavour to open the school to meet the Local Authority’s preferred timescale of September 

2017 despite this timescale being very ambitious.  All other successful peer bids proposed to open a 

year later.  As there was already a shortfall of primary places in the area the Trust was asked to 

admit a bulge reception year in September 2016.  The Trust agreed and these children were admitted 

to Hardwicke Parochial Primary – 30 over the school’s PAN. 

 

Clearwater CofE Primary Academy opened its doors September 2017 to a cohort of 30 children in 

temporary accommodation based on the Hardwicke site.  This occurred whilst concurrently applying 

for planning on the earmarked site.  Clearwater Primary, on the temporary site, will only be able to 

accept a further 30 pupils in the 2018 Reception intake.  This would not be ideal for either 

Clearwater or Hardwicke pupils, however as this position was likely to be of a temporary nature the 

Trust considers this expansion could be accommodated for a short period. 

 
If planning is not granted the longer term sustainability of the school is in serious doubt.  Although 

the Trust would vigorously appeal a decision not to grant planning permission, this process itself 

could take a year and the ensuing delays to the build programme would jeopardise the viability of a 

school that is fulfilling, at the LA’s request, a significant shortfall of places.  There could be no further 

expansion on the current temporary site and therefore Clearwater would be unable to admit any 

new pupils in September 2019. 

 

Information provided by the place planning officer for the Local Authority has confirmed that: 

 

 2019 Reception intake  - forecast 481 for 420 places – 61 short 

 2020 reception intake – forecast 544 for 420 places – 124 short 
 

Rachel Howie 

CEO Diocese of Gloucester Academies Trust  
 
 

rhowie@glosdioc.org.uk 
Direct line 01452 835542 

Mobile 07399 595033 

Page 46



 

 

This does not take into account some of the more recent housing which will add to this already 

existing pressure. 

 

We are now at a critical point in the decision making process.  If we do not secure planning for the 

permanent site it is highly unlikely we would secure additional planning for the temporary site to 

increase capacity.  This would bring into question the sustainability of the school and, with that in 

mind, we would have to close the school.  If this were the case, not only would this exacerbate the 

on-going critical shortfall of Reception places the Local Authority would need to secure places for 

those children already attending Clearwater.  This would be highly disruptive and distressing for the 

pupils, families and staff of the school. 

 

We are saddened that the needs of the children in the community of this area of Quedgeley are not 

being considered in this process and that, by 2020, the data is clearly demonstrating that in excess of 

240 children will need to be transported out of Quedgeley, their community, to an educational 

establishment which may have some places.  Due to the pressure in Gloucester, it is highly unlikely to 

be within the city or surrounding suburbs.  The economic impact of this would be considerable but 

more importantly the impact on those children would be greater still. 

 

To put it simply, if this planning permission is not granted Clearwater Primary would have to close 

and by 2020 in excess of 240 children aged between 4 and 7 would be being transported out of the 

area for their schooling.  

 

Yours sincerely, 

Mrs Rachel Howie  

 
 

 

Page 47



Joann Meneaud 
Gloucester City Council 
Herbert Warehouse  
The Docks  
Gloucester  
GL1 2EQ 

17th November 2017 
 

Dear Ms Meneaud 
 
 
Re: Proposed Primary School, Land at Clearwater Drive, Quedgeley 
 
 
I am writing on behalf of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in association 

with the application for the development of a state funded primary school at Clearwater 

Drive, Quedgeley (reference 17/00729/FUL). 

 

We have been kept informed of developments by the appointed contractor due to deliver 

this important infrastructure project as the application has progressed from pre-application 

discussions to negotiations during the formal determination period. To date, we have been 

made aware that although there have been some delays, the application has been broadly 

supported, subject to a number of technical matters being resolved. 

 

However, we understand that, following a letter issued on 14 November, this position has 

changed and the City Council is now minded to recommend refusal when the application is 

due to be reported to planning committee on 5 December. We understand this is the first 

time the appointed team has been made aware of this altered position. Evidently, it is 

disappointing to learn of this recommendation, particularly at this late stage in 

proceedings.   

Luke Kennedy  
Regional Head, Free Schools Capital 
Education and Skills Funding Agency 
Department for Education 
Sanctuary Buildings 
Great Smith Street 
London 
SW1P 3BT 
 

Page 48



 

We understand that the planning consultant managing the application has written to you in 

detail on this matter.  We are surprised to learn that the recommendation is based on the 

location of outside play areas, despite the City Council’s Environmental Health Officer 

confirming no objection on noise grounds.  We also understand this is on the basis that 

there will be a loss of open space, despite the fact the site is allocated for a much-needed 

school and the City Council’s own Open Space Strategy confirms that the site is reserved 

for future development. 

 

Given the strong policy support for the provision of state funded school, as confirmed by 

the NPPF, I am writing to ask that the City Council will reconsider the current 

recommendation. The strong policy support at the national level, together with a clear 

indication at the local level that the site will be used as a school, advocates that this 

application should be supported. 

 

Continued delays to this project will exacerbate educational need in the area and will result 

in issues at the Schools existing temporary site, which is constrained.  As it is unlikely that 

further pupils can be accommodated on this site, this may place considerable pressure on 

the County Council to identify and allocate sufficient school places for the next academic 

year.   

 

As such, I feel it is in everyone’s interests for the City Council to reconsider the current 

recommendation and report the scheme to committee as soon as practically possible.   

 

 
Yours sincerely,  
 

 
Luke Kennedy 
 
Regional Head 
Free Schools Capital 
Education and Skills Funding Agency  

Page 49



 
 
 
 
MP Ref: NM/0343 
Email: nathan.mcloughlin@mplanning.co.uk 
 

16 November 2017 
 
Joann Meneaud 
Gloucester City Council 
VIA EMAIL ONLY 
 
 
Dear Joann 
 
PLANNING APPLICATION 17/00729/FUL 
Land at Clearwater Drive, Quedgeley 
Proposed new Primary School 
 
Further to your letter of 14 November and our recent discussions on the matter, set out 
below is a review of the points that you have made and your position that the application 
is currently being recommended for refusal. Our team, is disappointed about the content 
of the letter and the basis by which you propose to refuse the planning application, 
especially given this is the first time this has been indicated in over 5 months of post 
submission discussions. 
 
Furthermore, we are equally disappointed by the fact that you had declined to meet with 
us on a number of occasions, including the previously agreed 15 November at which we 
could have discussed the letter and the implications for the project.  
 
This letter reviews your letter of 14 November and is accompanied by a response from 
the Diocese of Gloucester Academies Trust. We understand that the Education and Skills 
Funding Agency (ESFA) will also be writing to you about this matter. 
 
In turning to the contents of the letter, our position on the various points is as follows: 
 
“Highways” 
 
I note from our conversation on the 14 November that the letter was prepared without 
sight of the County Highways response, which was issued to you on the 10 November. 
Given the extensive programme of work we have undertaken with County Highways it 
would have been prudent to reflect on the County’s findings. 
 
This response shows that the County has “No Highway Objection” subject to conditions 
being imposed. Therefore there are no grounds for refusal. 
 
“Contamination” 
 
Your letter is helpful in confirming the position that this has now been adequately 
addressed for the purposes of determining the planning application, subject to conditions 
being imposed on any planning permission. 
 
As a result, there is no contamination concern relating to the site, and therefore no 
grounds for refusal. 
 
“Drainage” 
 
You will recall that there were extensive discussions on the drainage issue, culminating in 
a meeting in August, where the matter was settled and that both the County and LLFA 
have no objection to the scheme. Therefore, there are no grounds for refusal. Page 50



J Meneaud 
Clearwater 
16 November 2017 16 November 2017 
 
 

2/5 

 
“Lighting” 
 
In terms of lighting concerns, it is understood that these relate to the potential 
floodlighting of the MUGA and sports pitch. The lighting plan submitted with the 
application makes it clear that there is no lighting of these spaces and as a result, there is 
no objection to the proposals on lighting grounds (see EHO Email 2 November 2017). 
Therefore, there are no grounds for refusal. 
 
“Air Quality” 
 
I am extremely concerned about the late involvement of the Environmental Health 
Officer, who formally responded to the application for the first time on 16 October 2017, 
some 12 weeks since the application was validated. 
 
I’ve made the applicant’s position on the need for an air quality assessment and the data 
available to support our position robustly clear and still await a response on this.  
 
“Levels” 
 
We understand that there are some minor discrepancies between certain plans, it would 
be useful if the references are provided so that these can be specifically addressed and 
this could have been resolved at the postponed meeting. Given the minor nature of these 
discrepancies we do not accept that there are any grounds for refusal. 
 
“Elevations” 
 
It is helpful to note that you raise no concern about the design of the building. In terms 
of materials, your comments about the brick are noted and this could have been 
discussed at the cancelled meeting. Again this is a minor point of detail that provides no 
grounds for refusal.  
 
“Physical Impacts from the Building” 
 
It is helpful to note your support for the design of the building and its relationship with 
neighbouring properties. Between this comment and your comments on elevations, it is 
clear to conclude that the design and siting of the school building is seen as an 
appropriate solution. 
 
“Gloucester City Council Revised Deposit Local Plan 2002: Allocation of Site” 
 
You clearly recognise the fact that the site is allocated under Policy CS9 for a new school 
and then, secondly as public open space, should the site not be needed for a school. The 
site is needed for a school, as confirmed by the Planning Statement accompanying the 
application. 
 
“Current use of the Land” 
 
It is not a matter of dispute that the site is open space and is clearly used by local 
residents as such. Nor do we look to dispute the overall level of open space in the area, 
as per the Council’s Open Space Strategy. However, in the interests of clarity the 2014-19 
Open Space Strategy does not identify the site as public open space and does not 
contribute to the overall supply of open space in the Quedgeley Severn Vale Ward. In 
fact, the Strategy goes further to note that the site is:  
 
“County council owned land reserved for future development” 
 

Page 51



J Meneaud 
Clearwater 
16 November 2017 16 November 2017 
 
 

3/5 

In terms of your perceived conflict between the development and the loss of open space, 
I again point you to Policy CS9 of the 2002 Local Plan, which provides a straight forward 
way of dealing with this matter. The land is allocated for a school use and then proposed 
as open space, should the land not be required for a school. Clearly the time has come to 
use the site for a school and as a result, Policy CS9 takes priority over policy OS7. 
 
We are extremely concerned about the Council’s blatant disregard for its own plan, 
especially in terms of providing the stability to make investment decisions on significant 
pieces of social infrastructure, such as this. The site is a long-standing school 
commitment, which has been in place since 1996 and equally continues to do so, through 
the emerging Gloucester City Local Plan. 
 
In addition, the NPPF (para 72) places “great weight” on the need to create, expand or 
alter schools.  Evidently, this places a high bar for any policy justification put forward 
when not approving development for schools.  Given that local policy allocates the site for 
a school, which takes priority over policy OS7, given that the Council’s open space 
strategy recognises the future development potential of the site, there appears to be an 
absence of any such policy that justifies a recommendation for refusal. 
 
The statements in the NPPF are supplemented by the Joint Policy Statement on Schools 
Development (August 2011), published by DCLG.  This is attached for information.  This 
reconfirms that: 
 
“There should be a presumption in favour of the development of state-funded schools, as 
expressed in the National Planning Policy Framework.” 
 
It also confirms that: 
 
“A refusal of any application for a state-funded school, or the imposition of conditions, will 
have to be clearly justified by the local planning authority. Given the strong policy support 
for improving state education, the Secretary of State will be minded to consider such a 
refusal or imposition of conditions to be unreasonable conduct, unless it is supported by 
clear and cogent evidence.” 
 
We do not consider that the current use of land results in a conflict with national and local 
policy guidance.  Furthermore, the balance of the County’s land (which is outside of the 
redline boundary of this application and it outside of the applicants control) remains 
unchanged by this proposal and currently has the benefit of public access. 
 
“Residential Amenity” 
 
Following our telephone conversation yesterday afternoon and my subsequent letter 
regarding the residential amenity of neighbouring properties, I need to point out that the 
Council’s EHO has no objections to the application in terms of disturbance on 
neighbouring occupiers. 
 
In terms of MUGA guidance, using the Fields in Trust or the Council’s New Housing and 
Open Space guidance is inappropriate in this context. If this were a MUGA in a new 
housing development, I would fully agree with your interpretation on standards. However, 
in this case, it is not, this is a MUGA in the context of a school where the space provided 
can be used for a number of different sports activities for the children at various intervals 
during the school day. Before the start and at end of the school day, as has been stated 
on multiple occasions, there is no third party access to the MUGA, in the same way that 
there is no third party access to the playing fields and wider school site.  
 
In terms of providing school playing fields (irrespective of whether it is a sports 
pitch/MUGA/outdoor play area) the proposed layout is the best practical option which 
meets a whole series of competing requirements. 

Page 52



J Meneaud 
Clearwater 
16 November 2017 16 November 2017 
 
 

4/5 

 
“Conclusions” 
 
In terms of your conclusions I welcome the fact that you clearly recognise that there is 
“significant public benefit” of the application which attracts “significant positive weight in 
the planning balance”. This in broadly in line with the NPPF and other national guidance 
that places “great weight” on the need to create schools and a “presumption in favour of” 
applications for state funded schools. 
   
However, the relative weight attached to loss of open space and alleged impact on 
neighbouring properties is overstated and does note reflect the requirements of the 2002 
Local Plan.  
 
Furthermore, your consideration of the balance fails to consider the impact not providing 
the school will have on the provision of places in this part of Gloucester. As set out at the 
start of the project, there is an urgent need for this school to be provided as there is a 
serious capacity issue for school places in Quedgeley that needs to be addressed. To help 
explain the matters, the attached summary from the Diocese of Gloucester Academies 
Trust shows that by 2020 a minimum of 240 children will not have school places in 
Quedgeley and will need to be transported to other locations, which given the overall 
capacity issues in Gloucester as a whole, will see children schooled outside of the City  
and the communities in which they live. 
 
Therefore, the need for this school, which carries significant weight in planning terms, 
should result in the scheme being recommended for approval.   
 
Overall Summary 
 
To conclude, the above analysis of the issues raised in your letter shows that there is no 
planning policy basis for refusing the planning application, nor is there any technical basis 
for doing so, once the responses of statutory and non-statutory consultees are taken into 
account, summarised as follows: 
 
Issue Evidence Position 
Highways GCC Response No objection 
Contamination City Consultant/EA No objection 
Drainage GCC and LLFA No objection 
Lighting EHO Response No objection 
Ecology GCC Ecologist and FoD 

Ecologist (verbally reported) 
No objection 

Air Quality EHO To be resolved 
Levels Case Officer Minor amendments required 

to plans 
Elevational Design of the 
Building 

Case Officer No objection 

Physical Impacts from the 
building 

Case Officer No objection 
 

Planning Policy Allocated site for a school No objection 
Loss of open space Allocated site for a school No basis for objection 
Residential Amenity EHO Response No objection 
 
  

Page 53



J Meneaud 
Clearwater 
16 November 2017 16 November 2017 
 
 

5/5 

As can be seen from the above, aside from the need to amend the plans and resolve the 
EHO position on air quality, the evidence available shows that there is no policy basis for 
the application to be recommended for refusal. 
 
Therefore, I would like you to reconsider your position so that this important 
infrastructure project can be delivered. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nathan McLoughlin BSc (Hons) DipTP MRTPI 
Director  
 
Encs 

cc 

Cllr Paul James - paul.james@gloucester.gov.uk 
Cllr Gordon Taylor -  gordon.taylor@gloucester.gov.uk 
Cllr Andrew Lewis - andrew.lewis@gloucester.gov.uk 
Cllr Janet C. Lugg - janet.lugg@gloucester.gov.uk 
Cllr Nigel Hanman - nigel.hanman@gloucester.gov.uk 
Cllr Steve Morgan - steve.morgan@gloucester.gov.uk 
Cllr David Brown - cllrdavid.brown@gloucestershire.gov.uk 
Cllr Gerald Dee - gerald.dee@gloucester.gov.uk 
Cllr Said Hansdot - ahmed.hansdot@gloucester.gov.uk 
Cllr Paul Toleman - paul.toleman@talktalk.net 
Cllr Joanne Brown - joanne.brown@gloucester.gov.uk 
Cllr Lauren Fearn - lauren.fearn@gloucester.gov.uk  
Cllr Collette Finnegan - collette.finnegan@gloucester.gov.uk 
Cllr Clive Walford - clive.walford@gloucester.gov.uk 
Anthony Hodge – Gloucester City Council – anthony.hodge@gloucester.gov.uk 
Luke Kennedy –- Regional Head ESFA - Luke.Kennedy@education.gov.uk  
Mella Mcmahon – Gloucester City Council - Mella.Mcmahon@gloucester.gov.uk 
Richard Graham MP - richard.graham.mp@parliament.uk 
Chris Hedges – ESFA – chris.hedges@education.gov.uk 
Tyrone Vincent – Kier – tyrone.vincent@kier.co.uk 
Kerry Brimfield –DGAT - KBrimfield@glosdioc.org.uk 
Rachel Heywood – Gleeds – Rachel.heywood@gleeds.co.uk 
 
 

Page 54



Highways Development Management
Shire Hall

Gloucester
GL1 2TH

Joann Meneaud
Gloucester City Council
City Planning & Technical
Services Department
Herbert Warehouse   The Docks
Gloucester
GL1 2EQ

email: dave.simmons@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please ask for: David Simmons

Our Ref: G/2017/038950  Your Ref:  17/00729/FUL Date: 21 November 2017

Dear Joann Meneaud,

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
HIGHWAY RECOMMENDATION

LOCATION: Clearwater Primary School Clearwater Drive Quedgeley Gloucester 
PROPOSED: Erection of a Primary School and associated infrastructure with car park and
pedestrian and vehicular access from Clearwater Drive and pedestrian access to Aspen Drive. 

I refer to the above planning application received on the 27th July 2017 with submitted details;

SK028 Rev P2 – Car Park drop off proposals,
PL01 Rev P2 - Site Location Plan,
PL07 Rev P2 – Site Block Plan,
Design & Access Statement,
P17_0437_04 Rev F – Landscape Masterplan,
Planning Statement,
Transport Assessment June 2017 and July 2017,
Travel Plan June 2017,
Parking Arrangement July 2017,
20171026 Severnvale Drive Accident Data,
TA Review V1 GCC Comments – Jubb Response,
SK029 Rev P1 – Vehicle Swept Path Analysis,
3520-WAL Severnvale Drive ATC,
Councillor  Hannah Norman Objection Letter,
Jubb Response to Cllr Hannah Norman Objection Letter.

Page 55



Scale of Proposal:
The proposal is for the construction of a new 2FE 420 place primary school for 4-11 year old children and a 42
place nursery for children between 2 and 3 years of age. The school provides 19 teaching posts and 29 supporting
roles that would see 32.5 Full Time Equivalent positions.

It is envisaged that pupils will be drawn from similar locations of pupils currently enrolled at the neighbouring
primary schools of Meadowside Primary School, Field Court junior Academy, Beech Green Primary School and
Hardwick Parochial School.

Hours of Operation:
School teaching hours will be between 09:00 and 15:30. A breakfast club will be available from 08:00 with 30
pupils estimated to attend. After school clubs will run until 18:00 with 50 pupils estimated to attend. The nursery
will offer three different sessions (08:00 to 18:00, 09:00 to 12:00 and 13:00 to 16:00).

Student Catchment Areas:
The TA has developed a catchment area for the proposed school based on the geographical distribution of pupils
at other primary schools in the surrounding areas. The analysis of the location of pupils at other schools identifies
a main catchment area for each school of up to 1km (from which most pupils are assumed to originate) and a
secondary catchment area of up to 2km (from which a smaller proportion of pupils are assumed to originate). No
details of the proportions of pupils within these catchments have been provided. The catchment area developed
for the proposed school suggests all pupils will be within 1km of the site. Arguably the school will have a greater
catchment area than this, as a new school may be more attractive than existing schools and attract an intake
beyond 1km. The potential implication of a greater catchment area will be discussed as part of the Development
Trip Generation.

Site Access:

A priority junction onto Clearwater Drive is proposed. This is shown on Jubb Drawing No. SK021 Rev P1. A Stage 1
Road Safety Audit (RSA) will be required, although this could be secured by planning condition given the relatively
standard junction design, with opportunities to amend the design within public highway/Applicant land if issues
are raised by the RSA.

Visibility splays of 2.4m x 54m are proposed, commensurate with the requirements in Manual for Gloucestershire

Streets for a road with a 30mph speed limit. The TA makes reference to 85th percentile vehicle speeds recorded

by an Automatic Traffic Counter (ATC) on Clearwater Drive. 85th percentile vehicle speeds (7-day) of 25.4mph
(40.7kph) eastbound and 25.1mph (40.2kph) westbound are reported. The proposed visibility splays are
therefore considered acceptable.

Forward visibility measurements are not shown on the drawing, but from review of the plans it is evident that
forward visibility of 57m is achievable.

A 6.5m wide carriageway and 8m corner radii are proposed. Swept Path Analysis (SPA) has been undertaken for
numerous vehicle types at the proposed site access to demonstrate that the geometrics are appropriate. The SPA
is shown on Jubb Drawing No. SK001 Rev P5, and includes a coach (11.8m long), rigid truck (12.0m long) and fire
tender (8.680m long). The SPA shows these vehicles entering the site, navigating the internal car park and exiting
the site. The SPA submitted demonstrates that the geometry of the junction and internal site can accommodate

Page 56



these vehicle types, with in excess of 500mm clearance provided to vertical kerb-line structures, trees and formal
parking spaces.

It must be noted that the access design could be regarded as an over design in terms of carriageway width and
corner radii. Excessive carriageway widths and corner radii can encourage higher vehicle speeds at the junction
and increase the crossing distance for pedestrians. The carriageway of 6.5m for the access road is higher than
that on Clearwater Drive (6m). There is potential for the junction to operate with a reduced carriageway width
(e.g. 5.5m) and reduced corner radii (e.g. 6m). This can be addressed at the s278 technical stage if it is raised as
an issue during the Road Safety Audit. However at the planning stage, GCC has confidence that a safe and
suitable access can be achieved.

A further Swept Path Analysis has been undertaken to demonstrate that a coach can pass a large car along
Clearwater Drive.

Two separate ‘away from carriageway’ access points have been proposed to the east and west of the main
vehicular access. It is therefore unlikely that pedestrians will access the school via the vehicular access and
therefore minimises conflict. Non-school related pedestrians will continue to walk along Clearwater Drive. Tactile
Paving can be added to the junction arrangement to provide legibility to vulnerable users. A third pedestrian
access is proposed from Eldersfield Close to the east of the site to improve connectivity to the surrounding
residential areas. The pedestrian accesses are a suitable 2m in width. The Eldersfield Close pedestrian access links
to a combined footway/cycleway that in turn links to the residential area southeast of Severnvale Drive providing
a suitable alternative non-car based means of accessing the school.

Landscape Masterplan Drawing P17-0437_04 Rev D had demonstrated a set of gates at the site entrance at the
back of the publicly maintainable Highway. The gates appear to have been removed on revised Landscape
Masterplan drawing P17-0437_04 Rev F, although this is not entirely clear. Nonetheless, all gates on new
developments should be set back a minimum of 5m to ensure that any risk of rear end shunting whilst a vehicle is
waiting for the gates to open is minimised. Setting the gates back will ensure a private motorcar can be fully
accommodated off of the carriageway whilst the gates open.

A maintenance access is proposed off of Aspen Drive via the provision of a new gated access. The access will only
be used at times of maintenance of the playing fields. This will result in a low level of usage. The gate shall remain
closed and locked at all other times and shall be secured by way of planning condition.

Page 57



Parking Provision:

Landscape Masterplan P17-0437_04 Rev F shows a total of 56 parking spaces, of which two spaces are designed
as disabled. A parking accumulation study has been undertaken to assess the suitability of the parking provision.

Time Period

Total School Traffic
Generation

Parking
Accumulation Adjusted Parking

In Out Initial parking - 0 Initial parking – 24
spaces

07:00-08:00 19 11 8 31
08:00-09:00 103 87 25 48
09:00-10:00 16 21 20 43
10:00-11:00 4 3 21 44
11:00-12:00 8 5 24 47
12:00-13:00 15 18 21 44
13:00-14:00 7 14 14 37
14:00-15:00 14 8 20 43
15:00-16:00 49 64 5 28
16:00-17:00 34 53 -14 9
17:00-18:00 17 26 -23 0
18:00-19:00 13 11 -21 2
Total 300 322 - -

The parking accumulation is based on initial occupancy, adding arrivals and subtracting departures for each hour
to derive a peak parking accumulation in the hour. The peak parking accumulation is stated as 48 spaces within
the hour 08:00-09:00; this includes 24 spaces being occupied by the likely number of staff to be attending prior
to that time.

Drawing SK028 Rev P2 has demonstrated a drop-off / pick –up area for the Primary school and nursery. The
primary school pupil drop off is located close to the internal footways and is positioned as such to allow
circulation of other vehicles to be maintained. Although it is positioned across 7 perpendicular spaces, it can be
managed so that these spaces are occupied by staff prior to the peak drop-off times. A Car Parking Management
scheme can be secured by conditioned to ensure that safe and orderly drop-offs and escort of pupils to
classrooms can occur. This will ensure that hap-hazard parking upon the surrounding estate roads is minimised.
The nursery drop off has been dedicated to a number of perpendicular spaces as the drop-off time is likely to
greater in duration due to the ages of the children. Directional arrows will be marked upon the car park to ensure
orderly circulation and to minimise conflict.

The parking space dimensions adhere to the minimum of 2.4m x 4.8m in length stated within Manual for
Gloucestershire Streets. The disabled bays are measured as 3.4m x 4.8m, ideally these should be 3.6m x 4.8m to
provide a suitable transfer zone. This can be secured by condition.

Cycle Parking:

Gloucester City Council’s adopted cycle parking standards specify a level of provision for ‘D1 School/Creche/Day
Centre’ of 0.15 spaces per employee and 0.15 spaces per student. On a basis of 420 pupils and 38 staff, a
minimum cycle parking provision of 69 spaces are required. According to the Landscape Masterplan, a provision
of 20 cycle and 60 scooter spaces have been provided within an area that is gated and fenced for security. A
further 6 spaces are available for visitors near to the car park. Given the ages of the pupils, the mix of scooter and

Page 58



cycle spaces are deemed acceptable. The cycle parking will need to be provided in accordance with the
specification in Appendix L ‘Cycle Facility Guidance’ of MfGS. The positioning of the spaces is acceptable; however
the spaces should ideally be covered as they are used for long term parking. This can be secured by planning
condition.

Site Accessibility:

Section 5 of the Transport Assessment contained a Site Accessibility Audit by pedestrians, cyclists and public
transport users.

Pedestrian Accessibility:

The site is well connected with the existing network of footways that serve the surrounding residential areas. The
surrounding roads (Clearwater Drive, The Causeway, Miller’s Dyke and Severnvale Drive) have footways on both
sides of carriageway, are street lit and make provision for crossing movements through uncontrolled crossings at
side roads and on the main carriageway. All residential areas within Quedgeley are within the preferred
maximum 2km walking distance for commuting journeys/journeys to school specified by the IHT’s ‘Guidelines for
Providing for Journeys on Foot’ (2000). There are also numerous local facilities (convenience stores,
supermarkets, post office) located within 2km of the site.

Cyclist Accessibility:

The site is located in the vicinity of National Cycle Route 41, which provides an off-road route to Gloucester City
Centre. There is also an advisory on-road cycle route on Severnvale Drive. The surrounding roads are subject to a
30mph speed limit and are generally identified as being ‘quieter’ and requiring and lower level of experience on
Gloucestershire County Council’s ‘Gloucester Cycle Map’. Numerous residential areas are within 5km cycling
distance of the site, including Quedgeley, Hardwicke, Kingsway and Lower Tuffley and Central Gloucester. As
stated previously, there is also a dedicated off-carriageway cycle link between the residential areas either side of
Severnvale Drive which will provide a direct link to the proposed pedestrian access off of Eldersfield Close.

Public Transport Accessibility:

Bus stops are located on Severnvale Drive to the south of the junction with Clearwater Drive (Northbound
direction) and Deerhurst Place (Southbound direction). They are located within 200m walk of the centre of the
development site, well within the 400m specified distance in the IHT’s Guidelines for Planning for Public
Transport in Development’ document. These bus stops provide access to Service 12 (operated by Stagecoach
West), which routes between Quedgley, Hardwicke and Gloucester, operating at a weekday frequency of every
10 minutes. Service 167 (operated by Jackies Coaches) also serves these bus stops, but this is a daily school
service to Dursley Rednock School.

Non-Motorised User Report:

A Non-Motorised User (NMU) audit has been undertaken of key routes in the vicinity of the site, included at
Appendix E of the TA. The audit focused on four routes: Clearwater Drive, The Causeway and Miller’s Dyke, Aspen
Drive, and Severnvale Drive.

The audit identified a number of items that would be addressed with as part of highway maintenance
programmes (e.g. surface condition, markings). A total of five locations have been identified as being deficient in
the provision of tactile paving at dropped kerb locations. The school should be encouraging non-car based travel

Page 59



for all users and will increase the number of pedestrian movements along the routes where deficiencies were
identified. Is it therefore reasonable that the school delivers the provision of tactile paving, this will be secured by
way of planning condition.

Summary
The site benefits from a good level of accessibility to walking, cycling, bus and rail modes. Some deficiencies have
been identified in regard to the lack of provision of tactile paving at some dropped kerb crossings. In view of the
increase in pedestrian flows generated by the proposed development, upgrades at the identified locations are
sought (to be directly delivered by the Applicant secured by a planning condition).

Highway Network:

Local Highway Network:

The study area network includes Clearwater Drive, The Causeway, Severnvale Drive, and the approaches to the
Severnvale Drive/School Lane roundabout junction. All of these roads are single carriageway roads and subject to
30mph speed limit.

Highway Safety:

The TA provides an analysis of highway safety in the study area based on a review of collision data for the 5-year
period between 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2016. This shows that there have been two slight collisions in
the study area; one on Clearwater Drive and one on Severnvale Drive. A review of the Detailed Collision Report
determined that these incidents were separate with no pattern of incident to suggest any inherent highway
safety issue within the vicinity of the development.

Baseline Conditions:

A number of traffic surveys were undertaken in 2017. These include weekday junction turning counts and queue
length surveys at the Clearwater Drive/Severnvale Drive, The Causeway/Severnvale Drive, Clearwater Drive/The
Causeway priority junctions, and at the Severnvale Drive/Field Drive/School Lane roundabout junction. The TA
provides a summary of the mean maximum queue lengths recorded on the approach arms at each of the
junctions, but the raw queue length survey data has not been submitted as part of the TA. In view of the available
capacity at these junctions, supply of this data is not required. The summary reports that the junctions are
currently operating within capacity, with a mean maximum queue of no more than 3 PCUs reported for the
approach arms at each junction. This is confirmed by capacity analysis undertaken as part of the ‘Existing
Performance’ sub-section.

A 7-day ATC survey was undertaken on Clearwater Drive. Average two-way traffic flows of around 50 vehicles
during the weekday AM peak hour (08:00-09:00) and 35 vehicles during the weekday PM peak hour

(17:00-18:00) are reported. 85th percentile vehicle speeds (7-day) of 25.4mph (40.7kph) eastbound and 25.1mph
(40.2kph) westbound are reported, below the 30mph speed limit. The raw ATC survey data has been submitted

and confirms the 85th Percentile Speeds.

Existing Performance:

Capacity assessment has been undertaken of the surveyed junctions using the ‘Junctions 8’ software programme.

Page 60



Whilst this has been updated to ‘Junctions 9’, the primary features of the programme remain unchanged and we
are confident that this is unlikely to affect the reported results. The TA notes that geometric measurements of
the junctions has been based on Ordnance Survey (OS) mapping, with adjustments to take account of road
markings.

The modelling output reports for the surveyed junctions (reproduced at Appendices H to K of the TA) have been
reviewed. The geometry entered into the models is considered satisfactory and robust for assessment purposes.

The traffic flows entered into the model are consistent with those shown on the traffic flow spreadsheets, which
are consistent with the traffic survey data. Traffic flows in the model are specified as PCUs rather than vehicles.
HGV proportions have not been specified. The software programme manual advises that HGV proportions should
be specified regardless of whether traffic flows are entered as vehicles or PCUs. However, from a review of the
traffic survey data, HGVs (OGV1, OGV2 and PSVs for modelling purposes) make up a small proportion of
movements at each of the junctions and therefore are unlikely to materially affect the results shown in the base
models. The base models are considered representative of existing operational conditions and suitable for
assessment purposes.

Future Year Baseline Condition:

The Applicant has proposed a future year assessment scenario of 2022. This equates to five years following the
registration of the application. Traffic growth factors have been applied to the traffic survey data collected in
2017 to reflect the future traffic conditions. These have been obtained from TEMPro for the ‘Gloucester 014’ and
‘Gloucester 015’ Middle Super Output Areas (MSOAs), which covers the study area network. The ‘Urban – All
Roads’ category has been selected and growth factors derived for the AM peak, PM peak and interpeak (to cover
the school pick-up period). An average from the two MSOAs has been taken, which shows approximately 7%
growth during these periods between 2017 and 2022.

A review of the TEMPro factors has been undertaken based on the selection criteria presented in the TA. This has
identified some discrepancies between the growth factors presented in the TA and those derived from TEMPro,
although it is acknowledged that this may be a result of changing in housing and employment forecasts in
TEMPro since preparation of the TA. These are summarised as follows.

MSOA
AM Peak School Peak PM Peak

TA Review TA Review TA Review
G l o u c e s t e r
014

1.071 1.076 1.068 1.076 1.065 1.075

G l o u c e s t e r
015

1.081 1.082 1.075 1.076 1.073 1.078

Average 1.076 1.079 1.072 1.076 1.069 1.077

The TA shows a level of traffic growth of generally 7% between 2017 and 2022. The latest TEMPro forecasts
shows a marginally higher level of growth (by less than 1%) but this is unlikely to result in a material change in
traffic flows in the study area network in the 2022 Baseline scenario.

It is noted that the TA states there are no specific committed developments in the area that would significantly
affect traffic flows on the study area network. This is accepted.

Page 61



Development Trip Generation:

Parent School Runs:

The mode share associated with pupil travel has been derived from travel surveys undertaken at Meadowside
Primary School and Beech Green Primary School. The travel surveys showed walk/cycle/scoot mode shared of
67% and 75% with a car mode share of 33% and 25%. The car mode shares have been averaged to provide the
mode share for the proposed primary school. The walk/cycle/scoot mode share averaged 71% and the car mode
share was averaged to 29%. The National Travel Survey (NTS) 2015 reports a car driver mode share of 20% for
journeys to school of under 1 mile by children aged 5-10 years. The assumption of a 29% mode share is therefore
considered robust and is in accordance with what was agreed at the scoping stage. On that basis, the TA
calculates that, at full occupation, 122 school pupils and 12 nursery pupils will travel by car and 298 school pupils
and 30 nursery pupils will walk/cycle/scoot. The TA does not include potential mode shift associated with
measures implemented through the School Travel Plan, this represents a robust assessment.

The TA claims that pupils travelling by car are likely to share journeys with other pupils attending the
school/nursery (e.g. with pupils in the same or another family). TRICS has been used to calculate the number of
pupils occupying each car, with 28% of vehicle passengers forecast to share the same journeys with other pupils.
It is not clear how this has been calculated. This results in an occupancy level of 1.4 pupils per car; GCC has
undertaken its own analysis of TRICS and this level of occupancy is considered reasonable.

Staff Travel:

The TA states that the staff mode share has been derived from analysis of the 2011 census for the Gloucester 014
and Gloucester 015 MSOA’s. There are some minor discrepancies in the mode shares presented in the TA when
compared with GCC’s own analysis of the 2011 Census data, but these are unlikely to result in a material change
in the traffic generation of staff.

The TA state that most teaching and supporting staff would most likely be recruited locally and therefore the
mode shares represent a worst-case scenario. Whilst GCC agrees that support staff are likely to be local to the
development, it is unlikely that this would extent to teaching staff, who will typically travel greater distances. This
does not affect the assumptions of the assessment. The mode shares have then been applied to the number of
Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) employees to calculate the number of staff trips arriving prior to the start of the school
day. The actual number of staff employed will be 48; further evidence should be presented with regard to
anticipated staff working patterns to confirm that the use of FTE is appropriate, as there may be a number of
part-time staff that arrive during the AM peak hour, therefore resulting in a higher number of staff arrivals during
this period than has been forecast.

Page 62



Time Distribution of the Forecast School Traffic:

On the basis of the above, the TA has forecast the following vehicle trips at the start of the school day.

Vehicle Trip Generation – Drop-off Period (spread across 07:00 to 09:00 in the TA – see below)
Type Arrivals Departures Two-Way
Staff 25 0 25
Parents School
Runs

Primary School 88 88 176
Nursery School 9 9 18

Total 122 97 219

The TA has then developed a trip profile for the development. These are split into two categories; nursery school
parent runs and staff traffic + primary school parent runs.

Nursery School Parent Runs:
The TA sets out a profile of trips generated by the nursery based on assumptions regarding attendance during the
proposed nursery sessions. There is a lack of certainty regarding attendance at these sessions; a robust
assessment would therefore have been to consider all trips in each session. However, this will not result in a
material change to the total forecasts.

Staff Traffic + Primary School Parent Runs:
For the drop-off period, trips generated by pupils and staff have been spread out across the period 07:00-09:00
to take account of earlier staff arrivals and the breakfast club (commencing at 08:00). Trip profiles in TRICS have
been used to establish the proportion of traffic during each hourly period; this results in 17% of arrivals and 12%
of departures during the period 07:00-08:00, and 83% of arrivals and 88% of departures during the period
08:00-09:00. Whilst the use of TRICS for this proportional split is considered reasonable, it should be noted that
trips will not be spread evenly within each of these periods, rather there will be peaks in demand at around 08:00
(associated with staff arrivals and the breakfast club) and for the drop-off prior to the start of the teaching day
(commencing at 09:00).

The TA then calculates the level of traffic generation for the remainder of the 12 hour period (07:00-19:00) based
on a profile derived from TRICS. This methodology is questioned as it mixes a first principles approach in the
morning with a TRICS calculation in the afternoon. The key assessment periods in the remainder of the day are
15:00-16:00 and 17:00-18:00 and it is considered that the traffic generated during these periods should have
been calculated utilising the first principles methodology development earlier in the TA. For example, the
information for the drop-off could be used for the pick-up period with consideration to attendance at
after-school clubs. However, GCC has undertaken its own review of the information and concludes that this is
unlikely to result in a material change in the traffic generation forecasts.

Residual Traffic Impact:

The TA goes onto apply discounts to the traffic generation forecasts to take account of school trips already on the
network, as it is envisaged that the opening of a new school will attract a number of pupils from existing
oversubscribed schools in the surrounding area. For parent school runs, the TA assumes the following:

Page 63



 50% of parent’s school runs during the AM will be linked journeys with other purposes. No justification for this
has been presented in the TA; this was requested by GCC during scoping discussions. The NTS 2015 reports
that 71% of escort trips return home, with only 29% continuing on for other purposes (e.g. work or business,
shopping, etc). This would suggest that there would be fewer linked trips than envisaged.

 10% of parent’s school runs are assumed to already be using Clearwater Drive as part of journeys to other
schools in the area. There are more direct routes to Severnvale Drive along The Causeway and Millers Dyke
for residents who live in that area of Quedgeley and travel to existing schools. This was highlighted by GCC
during scoping discussions. To ensure a robust assessment, no existing pass-by trips should be assumed.

 The remaining proportion of traffic is considered to be new to the local network.

The TA assumes that all staff trips will be new to the network and this accepted.

Traffic Distribution:

The TA sets out the traffic distribution for each of the traffic types; new traffic, linked traffic and pass-by traffic.
For new traffic, it is assumed that 10% will come from the neighbouring residential estate to the southwest of the
site (i.e using The Causeway). The remaining 90% will travel to/from Severnvale Drive and be distributed
according to observed turning proportions. Linked traffic has been distributed based on the observed proportions
at the Severndale Drive/Clearwater Drive junction. These methods are considered reasonable, the TA also
includes a method for pass-by traffic on Clearwater Drive; as discussed, GCC does not consider the assumption
that there is existing school traffic on Clearwater Drive to be reasonable.

It is not clear how staff trips have been distributed on the network. All staff traffic should route to/from
Severnvale Drive. Beyond this, 2011 Census data for journeys to existing employment in the area should be
analysed to establish the likely origin of trips and associated distribution onto the network.

The resulting traffic flow diagrams are included at Appendix F of the TA. These have been reviewed and are
consistent with the methodology and calculations set out in the TA.

Network Capacity Tests:

GCC has undertaken a review of the network capacity results presented in the TA. The TA has assessed the
capacity of the existing and proposed junctions without and with the proposed development in 2022. The
following weekday time periods have been assessed:

 AM Peak Hour (08:00-09:00) – Morning Peak in which Drop-off’s occur.

 School Peak Hour (15:00-16:00) – Afternoon School Pick-Up Peak time.

 PM Peak Hour (17:00-18:00) – Evening Peak.

The following junctions have been subject to assessment:

 Clearwater Drive/Severnvale Drive Priority junction;

 The Causeway/Severnvale Drive priority junction;

 Clearwater Drive/The Causeway Priority Junctions;

 Severnvale Drive/Field Drive/School Lane roundabout junction.

Page 64



In addition, capacity analysis has been undertaken for the proposed site access junction. The traffic flow inputs
for each scenario have been reviewed for each junction. These are consistent with the traffic flows presented at
Appendix F of the TA. As for the 2017 Base Model, HGV proportions have not been specified but this is unlikely to
materially affect the results. The results are discussed in the following sub-sections. Priority junctions and
roundabouts are considered to operate within practical capacity at a Ratio of Flow to Capacity (RFC) of 0.85 and
below.

Clearwater Drive/Severnvale Drive Priority Junction:
The assessment shows that, without the development, the junction will operate well within practical capacity in
all assessment time periods. During the AM and PM peak hours, the maximum RFCs will be on Clearwater Drive
(0.19) and Severnvale Drive North (0.10) respectively. During the school peak (PM), the maximum RFC will be on
Severnvale Drive North (0.06). The junction will continue to operate well within practical capacity with the
proposed development. The maximum RFCs will be on Clearwater Drive (0.41 in the AM, 0.15 in the PM, 0.18 in
the school peak); this will result in only a marginal increase in queuing and delay at the junction. The results
report queues of no more than one vehicle on all approach arms.

Severnvale Drive/The Causeway Priority Junction:
The assessment shows that, without the development, the junction will operate well within practical capacity in
all assessment time periods. The maximum RFCs during the AM and PM peak hours will be on The Causeway
(0.33) and Severnvale Drive North (0.21) respectively. Both will have the same RFC (0.12) during the school peak.
The junction will continue to operate well within practical capacity with the proposed development. The
maximum RFCs will be on The Causeway during the AM peak (0.34) and school peak (0.13), and on Severnvale
Drive North during the PM peak (0.21). The increases in RFC will result in only a marginal increase in queuing and
delay at the junction. The results report queues of no more than one vehicle on any approach arm.

Clearwater Drive/The Causeway Priority Junction:
The assessment shows that, without the development, the junction will operate well within practical capacity in
all assessment time periods. The RFC will not exceed 0.02 during the AM peak hour. The maximum RFCs during
the PM and school peak hours will be on Clearwater Drive (0.06 and 0.02 respectively). The junction will continue
to operate well within practical capacity with the proposed development. The maximum RFCs will be on
Clearwater Drive (0.02 in the AM peak, 0.06 in the PM peak, 0.03 in the school peak); this will result in only a
marginal increase in queuing and delay at the junction. The results report queues of no more than one vehicle on
any approach arm.

Severnvale Drive/Field Drive/School Lane Roundabout:
The assessment shows that, without the development, the junction will operate well within practical capacity in
all assessment time periods. The maximum RFCs during the AM and PM peak hours will be on Severnvale Drive
(0.57 and 0.49 respectively), and on School Lane East during the school peak (0.45). The junction will continue to
operate well within practical capacity with the proposed development. The maximum RFCs during the AM and
PM peak hours will be on Severnvale Drive (0.60 and 0.49 respectively), and on School Lane East during the
school peak (0.45). The increases in RFC will result in only a marginal increase in queuing and delay at the
junction. The results report queues of no more than two vehicles on any approach arm.

Site Access Junction:
The assessment shows that the proposed site access junction will operate well within capacity during all
assessment time periods. The maximum RFC during the AM peak hour will be on Clearwater Drive East (0.17) due

Page 65



to the right-turn into the site, and will be at the School Access during the PM peak hour (0.04) and school peak
(0.11).

Summary:
The analysis has demonstrated that all assessment junctions will operate within capacity with the proposed
development. Notwithstanding the concerns regarding the trip generation and distribution methodology, GCC is
satisfied that there is sufficient capacity at the assessment junctions to accommodate traffic generated by the
proposed development.

Impact of Catchment Area:

It has been suggested that the school will have a wider catchment area during the initial years of opening. The
operator has stated that, from experience, places at Church of England Schools are in High demand, meaning
pupils will be drawn from a smaller catchment area. Whilst it is possible that a wider catchment area during the
initial years of opening could result in a higher car drive mode share than has been assessed, the junctions on the
local highway network are shown to operate well within capacity and we are confident they will continue to do
so even with a higher car drive mode share. Furthermore, the impact assessments considered full occupation of
the school, so if there was a wider catchment in the initial opening years, the levels of pupils would be lower than
at full occupation years where the impact is adjudged to be acceptable.

School Travel Plan:

The TA includes a summary of the School Travel Plan (STP), which is a separate document. A review of the STP
has been undertaken and comments set out in the following sub-sections. This is an Outline Travel Plan and will
need to be updated to a Full Travel Plan once the development is occupied and the baseline travel survey
undertaken.

General:
The STP has been developed on the basis of anticipated school profile in terms of hours of operation, and pupil
and staffing numbers. Further details are provided with regard to the existing and proposed sustainable transport
opportunities, as well as the forecast mode share of pupils and staff, all as set out in the TA.

Aims and Objectives:
The STP has the overall aim “to provide measures, information and support initiatives that will “promote walking,
cycling and public bus services as safer alternative modes of travel and provide students, staff and visitors with an
opportunity to reduce the number of car trips to school thereby decreasing the amount of traffic and pollution.”

A number of objectives have been identified to achieve this aim. These are centred around increasing the
proportion of pupils and staff travel by non-car modes, and promotion and raising awareness of these modes.
However, there is no disaggregation between pupils, staff, visitors and external travel; this should be considered.

Management:
A Travel Plan Champion (TPC) (usually referred to as a Travel Plan Coordinator, but the roles and responsibilities
are the same) will be given the responsibility of implementing the STP. Contact details for this person should be
provided to GCC at the earliest possible opportunity. The roles and responsibilities of the TPC have been set out
clearly in the STP.

Page 66



A Working Group will also be established, comprising various members of the school community (governors,
staff, parents and pupils); this inclusivity of key stakeholders is welcomed. The STP states that members of the
WG will meet regularly, but does not specify the frequency. The WG should preferably meet on a termly basis. If
meetings are less frequent (i.e. annually), then the TPC should be responsible for actions which should be
undertaken more frequently. This should be set out in the roles and responsibilities of the TPC.

Travel Plan Target:
The STP sets out two categories of targets. The first are short-term targets, which can read more as actions, to be
completed prior to occupation and during the first year of occupation.

The second category of targets relate to the 5-year implementation period. These are to achieve a reduction in
car usage of 5%, and 75% awareness of the STP. With regard to car usage, it is not clear whether this is in relation
to actual car traffic generation, or to achieve 5% mode shift (e.g. from 71% to 66% for pupils). This needs to be
clarified and targets for staff and pupil travel should be set out separately. Interim targets within the 5-year
period should also be set for a 1 and 3 years after opening. It is also unclear how awareness of the STP will be
measured.
The STP states that targets will be developed and agreed in consultation with GCC once the development is
constructed and travel demand is understood. This is welcomed.

Measures:
Specific categories of measures are set out to address travel; these are travel within the curriculum, improving
information and awareness, walking/cycling, public transport, car share and evening events.

Measures are generally focused on providing information and marketing of sustainable travel options through
the curriculum, a travel information webpage, a welcome pack, a dedicated notice board and newsletters. It is
important that the information reaches staff and pupils/parents prior to joining the school as there is most
opportunity to address travel patterns prior to car use habits being established. Physical measures are also
included such as cycle storage, lockers and changing facilities. Shower facilities should be provided for staff.

The promotion of car sharing is limited to the Gloucestershire Car Sharing database. Further measures should be
included such as a staff car share database and the provision of an emergency ride home. More informal
approaches such as car sharing breakfasts or coffee mornings to introduce those staff interested in car sharing
are also recommended. No measures to address external travel (e.g. for school trips) are set out and it is
recommended that these are included.

An action plan has been prepared which summarises the measures, timescales for implementation and the
person responsible. These seem reasonable.

Monitoring:
A baseline travel survey is proposed at the opening of the new primary school, to be completed annually
thereafter annually. A commitment to operate the STP, and therefore travel surveys, for a minimum of ten years
should be provided. The survey will be in the format of an approved questionnaire to be issued to both
pupils/parents and staff. The form of the questionnaire is considered reasonable. The results of the survey will
need to be used to update the STP from its current Outline status to a Full Travel Plan once travel characteristics
of the site users is known.

Page 67



In addition, hands-up surveys will be undertaken, and whilst this is welcomed, the frequency of these surveys is
not specified. A detailed traffic survey at the access points is also proposed at the end of the 5-year
implementation period. This will provide a useful check against the findings of the questionnaire surveys. Other
monitoring includes car parking usage and recording comments from the wider community; this is welcomed.

The STP includes a commitment to prepare an annual monitoring report and this is welcomed. However, the STP
does not include a remedial strategy; this is required in the event that the STP is shown to be underachieving and
should include measures to help get the STP back on track. These could include personalised travel planning for
staff.

STP Conclusion:
The Outline Travel Plan presented represents a good basis for the preparation of the Full Travel Plan following
the baseline survey. Comments are made on the content of the document itself, but it is considered that the
comments are of such a nature that they can be addressed at the time of preparation of the Full Travel Plan.

Highways Conclusion and Recommendation:

Whilst the review has raised some concerns regarding trip rate methodology, GCC is satisfied that there is
sufficient capacity within the network study area to accommodate traffic generated by the proposed
development. The car park provision and layout is sufficient to allow parent/guardian drop-off/pick-ups and
provides adequate provision for the peak parking demand. The circulatory nature of the car park is legible with a
clearly defined drop-off area that will be managed by school staff. Therefore the school has provided adequate
provision to minimise prejudicial or ad-hoc parking occurring upon the Local Estate Roads. However, this does
not mean that no on-street parking will occur. Given the nature of the development is it expected that some
on-street parking may occur, however this will occur with a short spike of activity before quickly returning to
normal without adversely affecting the operation and safety of the highway. The school cannot prevent people
from parking upon the highway, which does not feature parking restrictions, but they have provided adequate
means to reasonably manage the impact. The School Travel Plan is generally acceptable subject to the identified
issues being addressed when the full School Travel Plan is submitted.

I recommend that No Highway Objection is raised, subject to the following condition(s);

Condition #1 Construction Method Statement:
No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a Construction Method Statement has
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be
adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement shall:

i. Specify the type and number of vehicles;
ii. Provide for the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
iii. Provide for the loading and unloading of plant and materials;
iv. Provide for the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
v. Provide for wheel washing facilities;
vi. Specify the intended hours of construction operations;
vii. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction
viii. Details of construction vehicle routing to and from the site.

Reason: - To reduce the potential impact on the public highway and accommodate the efficient delivery of goods
and supplies in accordance paragraph 35 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Page 68



Note: The highway authority will seek to recover costs for the extraordinary effects of construction traffic under
section 59 of the Highways Act. The applicant/developer is therefore asked to agree a condition survey of the
surrounding network prior to works commencing.

Condition #2 Junction with Clearwater Drive:
Prior to the building being brought into beneficial use the vehicular access shall be laid out and constructed
broadly in accordance with the submitted plan drawing no.SK021 Rev P1 with any gates situated at least 5m back
from the carriageway edge of the public road and hung so as not to open outwards towards the public highway
and with the area of access road within at least 10.0m of the carriageway edge of the public road surfaced in
bound material, and shall be maintained thereafter.

Reason: - To minimise hazards and inconvenience for users of the development by ensuring that there is a safe,
suitable and secure means of access for all people that minimises the conflict between traffic and cyclists and
pedestrians in accordance with Paragraph 35 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Note ii: The proposed development will involve works to be carried out on the public highway and the
Applicant/Developer is required to enter into a legally binding Highway Works Agreement (including an
appropriate bond) with the County Council before commencing those works.

Note iii: You are advised to contact Gloucestershire Highways on 08000 514 514 to discuss whether your
development will require traffic management measures on the public highway.

Note iv: A temporary access to the site during the construction phase can be provided under Section 184 of the
Highways Act 1980. The applicant is advised to contact the County Council to discuss before commencing those
works.

Condition #3 Parking and Layout:
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the vehicular parking layout and drop-off facilities
have been provided in accordance with the submitted plan drawing no. SK028 Rev P2 and those facilities shall be
maintained available for those purposes thereafter.

Reason: - To ensure that a safe, suitable and secure means of access for all people that minimises the conflict
between traffic and cyclists and pedestrians is provided in accordance with Paragraph 35 of the NPPF.

Condition #4 Cycle/Scooter Parking:
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the Cycle/Scooter parking has been made
available for use in accordance with the submitted plan drawing no. P17-0437_04 Rev D and those facilities shall
be maintained thereafter.

Reason: - To ensure that adequate cycle parking is provided, to promote cycle use and to ensure that the
opportunities for sustainable transport modes have been taken up in accordance with paragraph 35 of the NPPF.

Condition #5 Cycle/Scooter Shelter:
Details of a Cycle/Scooter shelter shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved Cycle/Scooter shelter shall then be provided and made available for use on the beneficial opening of
the building hereby permitted and maintained available thereafter.

Reason: - To ensure that adequate cycle facilities are provided to promote cycle use and to ensure that the

Page 69



opportunities for sustainable transport modes have been taken up in accordance with Paragraph 35 of the NPPF.

Condition #6 Crossing Point Improvements:
Details of Tactile Paving to be applied to the crossing points identified on drawing no. W17145_NMU_009 shall
be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall then be
provided prior to the beneficial opening of the development hereby permitted.

Reason: - To ensure priority is given to pedestrian cycle movements and to create a safe and secure layout which
minimises conflict between traffic and cyclists or pedestrians in accordance with Paragraph 35 of the NPPF.

Condition #7 Car Parking Management Scheme:
Details of a car park Management scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include details of the measures to be taken to ensure the safety of pupils, the free
flow of traffic at the vehicular accesses and within the car park. The approved car parking Management scheme
shall be implemented prior to the building being brought into beneficial use. The car park Management scheme
shall be adhered to at all times unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: - To ensure that ad-hoc or prejudicial parking upon the highway and any associated conflict is minimised
in accordance with Section 4 of the NPPF.

Condition #8 Disabled Parking:
Details of disabled parking spaces measuring 3.6m in width by 4.8m in length shall be submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority and the approved disabled parking shall be provided prior to the building
being brought into beneficial use.

Reason: - To ensure the needs of people with disabilities have been considered in accordance with Paragraph 35
of the NPPF.

Condition #9 Access Gates:
Notwithstanding the submitted details, any vehicle access gates shall be set a minimum of 5m back from the
carriageway edge of the public highway and maintained thereafter.

Reason: - To ensure a safe and secure layout that minimises conflict between traffic and cyclists or pedestrians is
provided in accordance with Paragraph 35 of the NPPF.

Condition #10 Pedestrian Accesses:
The pedestrian accesses as shown on drawing no. P17-0437_04 Rev F shall be provided and made available for
use on first occupation of the development hereby permitted for beneficial use.

Reason: - To ensure priority is given to pedestrian and cycle movements and to have access to high quality public
transport facilities in accordance with Paragraph 35 of the NPPF.

Condition #11 Maintenance Access:
The maintenance access as shown on drawing no. P17-0437_04 Rev F shall not be used for any other purpose
other than for maintenance of the playing field and the access gate shall remain closed and locked at all other
times.

Page 70



Reason: -
To ensure that hazards, inconvenience and risks of conflict between users is minimised in accordance with
Section 4 of the NPPF.

Condition #12 Travel Plan:
No works shall commence on the development hereby permitted until a Full School Travel Plan has been
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, setting out;

i. objectives and targets for promoting sustainable travel,
ii. appointment and funding of a travel plan coordinator,
iii. details of an annual monitoring and review process,
iv. means of funding of the travel plan, and;
v. an implementation timetable including the responsible body for each action.

The approved Travel Plan shall be implemented in accordance with the details and timetable therein, and shall be
continued thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: - To ensure that the opportunities for sustainable transport modes are taken up in accordance with
paragraphs 32 and 36 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Condition #12 School Safety Zone:
A scheme for establishing a School Safety Zone shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority with 6 months of the building being brought into beneficial use and  the approved scheme
shall be implemented in full within 18 months and maintained thereafter.

Reason: - To ensure the safe operation of the surrounding Highway network in the interests of road safety and to
minimise conflict between traffic, cyclists or pedestrians in accordance with Paragraph 35 of the NPPF.

Statement of Due Regard

Consideration has been given as to whether any inequality and community impact will be created by
the transport and highway impacts of the proposed development.  It is considered that no
inequality is caused to those people who had previously utilised those sections of the existing
transport network that are likely to be impacted on by the proposed development.

It is considered that the following protected groups will not be affected by the transport impacts of
the proposed development: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, other groups (such as long
term unemployed), social-economically deprived groups, community cohesion, and human rights. 

Yours sincerely,
David Simmons
Principal Development Coordinator

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PT 

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL 
 
COMMITTEE : PLANNING 
 
DATE : 5TH DECEMBER 2017 
 
ADDRESS/LOCATION : 25-31 EASTGATE STREET  
 
APPLICATION NO. & WARD : 17/01177/FUL 
  WESTGATE 
   
EXPIRY DATE : 13TH DECEMBER 2017 
 
APPLICANT : REEF ESTATES LTD 
 
PROPOSAL : Eastgate Street facade refurbishment 

works, relocation of concrete artwork 
panels, extension of building at ground 
floor over highway, alteration of existing 
canopy over Eastgate Street, and 
subdivision of the former BHS retail store to 
provide a class A1 retail unit over ground 
and first floor along with a new class A1/A3 
Cafe unit at ground floor and associated 
outdoor seating area. 

 
REPORT BY : ADAM SMITH 
 
NO. OF APPENDICES/ : SITE PLAN 
OBJECTIONS  PROPOSED LAYOUT 
 
 
1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 The application site is 25-31 Eastgate Street. This comprises the former BHS 

retail unit, and the Dorothy Perkins/Burtons retail unit to the north west. The 
site also includes part of Eastgate Street in front of the former BHS unit. The 
site is within the City Centre Conservation Area and there are listed buildings 
adjacent to the north west (the Guildhall) and on the opposite side of Eastgate 
Street (the Eastgate Centre entrance portico).  
 

1.2 The application proposes: 
Subdivision of the former BHS unit to provide a new Class A1/A3 café unit of 
186sq m (retention of the remainder of the building for the existing A1 retail 
use) 
An associated external seating area for the café unit to the front within 
Eastgate Street 
Extension of the ground floor of the former BHS unit forwards to infill the 
current undercroft area including new shopfronts 

Page 73

Agenda Item 6



 

PT 

Infill extension of the entrance area of the Dorothy Perkins/Burtons unit and 
new shopfront 
Replacement of the existing canopy at the Dorothy Perkins/Burtons unit with a 
new shorter canopy 
Replacement windows to the upper floors 
 

1.3 The application is referred to the planning committee as it involves Council 
land and an objection has been received.  

 
2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
  
2.1 No relevant recent history. It appears that the building may have gained 

planning permission in the mid 1960s.  
 

3.0 PLANNING POLICIES 
 
3.1 The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration 

of this application: 

Central Government Guidance - National Planning Policy Framework 

3.2 This is the latest Government statement of planning policy and is a material 
consideration that should be given significant weight in determining this 
application.  
 
Decision-making 
The NPPF does not alter the requirement for applications to be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. In assessing and determining applications, Authorities should apply 
the presumption in favour of sustainable development. For decision-making, 
this means: 
▪ approving development proposals that accord with the development plan 
without delay; and  
▪ where the development plan is absent, silent, or relevant policies are out of 
date, granting planning permission unless: 

- any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF as 
a whole; or  
- specific policies in the NPPF indicate development should be 
restricted.  

 
The NPPF includes relevant guidance on ensuring the vitality of town centres, 
promoting sustainable transport, requiring good design, and conserving and 
enhancing the natural and historic environment. These are commented on in 
more detail in the Officer considerations below.  
 
Planning conditions 
Planning conditions should only be imposed where they are  
- Necessary; 
- Relevant to planning and to the development to be permitted;  
- Enforceable; 

Page 74



 

PT 

- Precise; and 
- Reasonable in all other respects.  
 
The National Planning Practice Guidance has also been published to 
accompany and in part expand on the National Planning Policy Framework.  
 
For the purposes of making decisions, the NPPF sets out that policies in a 
Local Plan should not be considered out of date where they were adopted 
prior to the publication of the NPPF. In these circumstances due weight 
should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF. 
 

 The Development Plan 
3.3 Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 has 

established that - “The development plan is 
 (a) The regional spatial strategy for the region in which the area is situated, 

and 
 (b) The development plan documents (taken as a whole) which have been 

adopted or approved in relation to that area. 
 If to any extent a policy contained in a development plan for an area conflicts 

with another policy in the development plan, the conflict must be resolved in 
favour of the policy that is contained in the last document to be adopted, 
approved or published (as the case may be). If regard is to be had to the 
development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under the 
planning Acts, the determination must be made in accordance with the plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.” 

 
 Local Plan 
3.4 The statutory development plan for Gloucester remains the City of Gloucester 

Local Plan (Adopted 1983 and partially saved until the Local Development 
Framework is adopted). Under the terms of the NPPF, weight can be given to 
these policies according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF.  
 
Policy A.2 sets out that particular regard will be given to the City’s heritage in 
terms of archaeological remains, listed buildings and conservation areas.  

 
3.5 Subsequent to the 1983 plan there has also been the City of Gloucester (Pre-

1991 Boundary Extension) Interim Adoption Copy October 1996), and City of 
Gloucester First Stage Deposit Local Plan (June 2001). 
 

3.6 Regard must also be had to the 2002 Revised Deposit Draft Local Plan. This 
has been subjected to two comprehensive periods of public and stakeholder 
consultation and adopted by the Council for development control purposes. 
This cannot be saved as it is not a formally adopted plan, however with it 
being adopted for development control purposes it is still judged to be a 
material consideration.  
 
2002 Plan allocations 

3.7 Primary Shopping Area 
Conservation Area 

Page 75



 

PT 

Area of principal archaeological interest 
 

3.8 2002 Plan Policies 
FRP.11 - Pollution 
BE.4 – Criteria for the layout, circulation and landscape of new development 
BE.5 – Community safety 
BE.6 – Access for all 
BE.7 – Architectural design 
BE.21 – Safeguarding of amenity 
BE.23 – Development affecting the setting of a listed building 
BE.29 – Development within conservation areas 
BE.31 – Preserving sites of archaeological interest 
BE.32 – Archaeological assessment 
BE.33 – Archaeological field evaluation 
BE.34 – Presumption in favour of preserving archaeology 
BE.36 – Preservation in situ 
BE.37 – Recording and preserving archaeology 
TR.12 – Cycle parking standards 
TR.31 – Road safety 
S.8 – Changes of use in the Primary Shopping Area 
 
Emerging Plans 

3.9 On adoption, the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 
Strategy and Gloucester City Plan will provide a revised planning policy 
framework for the Council. In the interim period, weight can be attached to 
relevant policies in the emerging plans according to 
- The stage of preparation of the emerging plan 
- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies; 

and 
- The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to 

the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (Main 
Modifications Version, February 2017) 

3.10 The Council has prepared a Joint Core Strategy with Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Borough Councils (JCS) which was submitted for examination on 
20 November 2014.  Policies in the Submission Joint Core Strategy have 
been prepared in the context of the NPPF and are a material consideration. 
The JCS Inspector’s report was received in October 2017 and concluded that, 
subject to the main modifications and an immediate partial review, the JCS is 
sound and legally compliant. Therefore, in accordance with paragraph 216 of 
the NPPF, it is considered that the JCS policies can be given very significant 
weight. 
 

3.11 The following policies in the Adoption Version JCS are of relevance and the 
plan is subject to representations through the consultation which affects the 
weight that can be attributed to the policy; 
SP2 – Distribution of new development 
SD2 – Retail and city/town centres 
SD4 – Design requirements 

Page 76



 

PT 

SD8 – Historic environment 
SD14 – Health and environmental quality 
INF1 – Transport network 
 
Gloucester City Plan 

3.12 The Draft Gloucester City Plan and “call for sites” was subject to consultation 
January and February 2017. The Plan is at an early stage and therefore 
carries limited weight.  
 

3.13 All policies can be viewed at the relevant website address:- Gloucester Local 
Plan policies – www.gloucester.gov.uk/planning; and Department of 
Community and Local Government planning policies - 
www.communities.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/planning/. 

 
4.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 The Conservation Officer notes the site location within the City Centre 

Conservation Area and adjacent to the grade 2 listed Guildhall, and the 
intended re-location of the ceramic panels from BHS to a blind elevation on 
Clarence Street, and concludes the following; 
∙ reconfiguration of shop front to BHS would create a more active frontage to 
the building;  
∙ partial removal of large canopy to Dorothy Perkins would improve the 
visibility of the Guild Hall façade;  
∙ overall the proposed changes should be considered an enhancement to the 
Conservation Area; 
∙ the scheme has taken on board the Conservation Officer’s comments offered 
previously and adjusted the scheme to reflect these; 
∙ the application can be supported. 

 
4.2 The Civic Trust has not commented at the time of writing 
 
4.3 The Highway Authority raises no objection subject to conditions to secure 

cycle parking, relocate some of the street furniture outside the unit on 
Eastgate Street, and prevent doors opening outwards onto the street.  
 

4.4 The Environmental Health Officer raises no objection subject to a condition to 
secure the installation and maintenance of a suitable kitchen extraction 
system to the café.  
 

4.5 The City Archaeologist raises no in-principle objection and recommends a 
condition to secure a programme of archaeological work and approval of the 
foundation design and ground works.  

 
5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS 
 
5.1 13 neighbouring properties were notified and press and site notices were 

published.  
 

Page 77

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/planning
http://www.communities.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/planning/


 

PT 

5.2 An objection has been received from WH Smith, which occupies the adjacent 
unit to the east, and may be summarised as follows: 

 
- Reduced visibility to the WH Smith unit; 
- Reduced accessibility along Eastgate Street as a result of narrowing the 

street; 
- Potential long term harm to the commercial viability of the WH Smith unit; 
- Little evidence put forward in application to support need for additional 

floorspace, and unclear whether it would actually increase interest in the 
unit; 

- Council should ask for evidence of the need for the extension and why the 
coffee shop is required.  

- Proposal would contradict emerging City Plan Policy C2B as it would result 
in a reduction in the Primary Shopping Area’s vitality if long term trading 
patterns are adversely affected, and reduced accessibility on Eastgate 
Street. 

- Safety issues in the case of emergencies.  
 

------------------------------------------------ 
 
 A City Councillor has also commented, which may be summarised as follows: 

 
 The three murals should be removed safely and relocated to another location, 
confirmation is needed about how they will safely remove them. This is good 
public art and should be saved for the future. 
 
The proposals to relocate the murals to Clarence Street is acceptable, but 
they must be fixed to their new location in a way that means that they could be 
relocated in future.  
 
The murals should be displayed and illuminated in a way that shows them off 
most effectively and have an interpretation board nearby explaining how they 
were made, who the artist was, etc.  
 

5.3 The full content of all correspondence on this application can be inspected at 
Herbert Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, prior to the Committee meeting 
or via the following link: 

 
 http://planningdocs.gloucester.gov.uk/default.aspx?custref=17/01177/FUL 
 
6.0 OFFICER OPINION 
 
6.1 It is considered that the main issues with regard to this application are as 

follows: 
 

 Principle 

 Design and heritage 

 Traffic and transport 

 Archaeology 

 Environmental health 

Page 78

http://planningdocs.gloucester.gov.uk/default.aspx?custref=17/01177/FUL


 

PT 

 Economic considerations 
 

Principle 
6.2 Policy SP2 of the JCS seeks to focus development within Gloucester and 

Cheltenham to support their roles as principal providers of jobs, services and 
housing and to promote sustainable transport. Policy SD2 places Gloucester 
City Centre at the top of the hierarchy of centres and seeks to support and 
strengthen it to ensure it continues to be the focus of communities. The site is 
within the City Centre Boundary, Primary Shopping Area, and Primary 
Shopping Frontage. A1 retail development will be supported within the defined 
Primary Shopping Area. Leisure, entertainment and recreation development 
will be supported within the City Centre subject to amenity issues. Within the 
primary shopping frontage, the change of use of A1 retail premises will not be 
permitted unless it can be demonstrated that the unit is not suitable for 
continued A1 use, the proposal would maintain or enhance vitality and viability 
and subject to amenity issues. It also sets out that town centre development 
will be of a scale appropriate to its role and function and will not compromise 
the health of other centres or sustainable development principles. 
 

6.3 The NPPF seeks to proactively drive and support sustainable economic 
development, and promote competitive town centres that provide customer 
choice and a diverse retail offer. It requires the sequential test to be applied to 
applications for main town centre uses that are not in an existing centre and 
not in accordance with an up to date local plan. It also requires an impact test 
for retail and leisure development outside of town centres.  
 

6.4 From the 2002 plan Policy S8 sets out that changes of use of ground floor 
Class A1 retail uses in the Primary Shopping Area will only be permitted 
against a criteria-based policy considering the amount of non-retail uses in a 
street, vacancy and marketing, or if it would sustain and enhance the vitality 
and viability of the Primary Shopping Area.  
 

6.5 The proposal involves an extension of the retail use within the primary 
shopping area. In this location, no sequential or impact test is necessary.  
 

6.6 The proposal also involves the subdivision of the ground floor premises for a 
new Class A3/A1 café unit. The broad principle of this type of use in the city 
centre is acceptable but the subdivision of a retail unit to facilitate it prompts 
consideration of JCS Policy SD2 and 2002 Policy S.8. In this context the 
following changes are relevant;  
 
The ‘lost’ area of A1 retail floorspace from the subdivision is 167sq m 
The extension would create 117sq m of retail floorspace 
The first floor alterations remove the former internal café and replace it with 
retail floorspace, comprising 468sq m  
 
In this context there would be a net gain of 418sq m of useable retail 
floorspace arising from the proposals. Therefore the underlying concern for 
loss of A1 floorspace in the primary shopping area would not be apparent as 
that would not occur. Notwithstanding this, in considering the tests within the 

Page 79



 

PT 

above policies, while the application does not show that the unit is unsuitable 
for continued A1 usage nor that marketing for an A1 use has been 
unsuccessful, it is considered that the proposal would maintain the vitality and 
viability of the area and would not have a significant adverse impact on the 
amenity of adjacent residents or businesses. It would be a single non-A1 use 
between A1 uses either side, and the street would continue to have a 
significant predominance of retail use. In this context of the overall net gain of 
retail floorspace, the existing uses on the street and the proposed 
arrangement of floorspace, I recommend that no objection is raised to the 
subdivision of part of the unit for A1/A3 café use.  
 

6.7 There is no test of ‘need’ for the development (it appears in the 2002 Second 
Deposit Policy S.4a but this aspect is no longer in line with government 
policy). This is noteworthy in relation to the WH Smith objection which asks for 
evidence of need.  
 

6.8 WH Smith also raises the issue of long-term harm to the commercial viability 
of the unit it currently occupies. This would appear to be in relation to the 
visibility of the unit which could be moderately adversely affected by the 
proposals and is commented on in design terms below. I do not consider that 
this moderate adverse impact would harm the vitality and viability of the city 
centre and the limited impact is outweighed by the benefits of the increased 
A1 retail offer in an improved unit.  
 

6.9 I understand that the extension would occupy existing highway land beneath 
the undercroft. Further analysis of the design implications of this and the 
Highway Authority’s view are set out below, but as a matter of principle no 
objection is raised to the loss of highway land.  
 

6.10 External seating for food and drink uses is generally encouraged in the gate 
streets to enliven the streets and the use of part of Eastgate Street for this 
purpose is not considered objectionable.   
 

6.11 Overall no objection is raised to the principle of the development.  
  
Design and heritage 

6.12 Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 provides that where an area is designated as a conservation area 
'special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing 
the character or appearance of the area'. Sections 16(2) and 66(1) provide 
that the determining authority shall have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving a listed building or its setting.  

6.13 Chapter 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework sets out the 
importance of protecting and enhancing the historic environment, and 
conserving heritage assets in a manner appropriate to their significance. In 
particular, paragraph 131 states that in determining planning applications, 
local authorities should take account of 'the desirability of sustaining and 
enhancing the significance of heritage assets'. Paragraph 132 states that 
when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance 

Page 80



 

PT 

of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s 
conservation. The more important the asset, the greater the weight should be. 

6.14 In terms of design the NPPF states that new developments should be of high 
quality design, respond to local character and be visually attractive as a result 
of good landscaping.  

6.15 In terms of heritage JCS Policy SD8 is similarly relevant in terms of assessing 
the impact on the Conservation Area and setting of listed buildings, requiring 
heritage assets and their settings to be conserved and enhanced as 
appropriate to their significance, and for their important contribution to local 
character, distinctiveness and sense of place. Development should aim to 
sustain and enhance the significance of heritage assets.  

6.16 In terms of design JCS Policy SD4 sets out requirements to respond positively 
to, and respect the character of, the site and surroundings, and enhance local 
distinctiveness.   

6.17 In terms of heritage Policy BE.29 of the 2002 Plan sets out that proposals 
within conservation areas should preserve or enhance the character or 
appearance of the conservation area, also noting that they should retain the 
character of spaces, be of a scale, form, mass, layout, alignment, elevational 
treatment and overall character that harmonises with those buildings and 
features that contribute positively to the character of the conservation area, 
and ensure that important views into and out of the conservation area are 
retained or enhanced. Policy BE.23 sets out that development that adversely 
affects the setting of a listed building will not be permitted.  

6.18 In terms of design the 2002 Plan policies including BE4, BE5, BE6 and BE7 
seek to ensure that new developments are of good design that is in keeping 
with their surroundings and follow accepted urban design principles.  

Design and heritage assessment 
6.19 The proposals would modernise the appearance of the ground and upper 

floors of the building and it is considered that they would enhance the 
appearance of the building.  
 

6.20 The replacement of the large existing canopy at the Dorothy Perkins/Burtons 
unit with a shallower canopy would open up views of the adjacent listed 
Guildhall and improve its setting. No harm would be caused to the setting of 
the listed Eastgate Centre entrance portico across the street.   
 

6.21 The proposal would result in a ‘stepped’ row of shop frontages, where the 
extension would sit forward of the adjacent units in the same manner as the 
existing oversailing upper floors. The existing building form exhibits this 
projecting arrangement within the streetscene already (the extension would 
only enclose the existing open projection), and is similar to other buildings in 
the city centre such as the row of units opposite the application site 
comprising H&M to Boots, the Marks and Spencer/Carphone Warehouse 
units on Eastgate Street, and the Paddy Power/Costa units on Southgate 
Street which have staggered build lines at the undercroft ground floor. There 
are also staggered building arrangements in a different building form nearby, 

Page 81



 

PT 

most notably with St Michael’s tower at the cross, and also at the EE/Ernest 
Jones units on Northgate Street, and the Patisserie Valerie/Vodaphone units 
on Southgate Street. It is not considered that the proposed extension would 
be harmful to the character of the street.  
 

6.22 The proposal would slightly narrow Eastgate Street at ground floor. This is 
already the case with the oversailing upper floors and in terms of appearance 
of the street this additional ‘narrowing’ effect is not considered to be harmful. 
In terms of ‘useability’, the current undercroft arrangement serves as a shelter 
from the elements at present. Its loss might be seen as something of a 
disbenefit but in the context of having the entrances to the Kings Walk and 
Eastgate Centre in close proximity (and to a lesser degree the car park bridge 
over the street), this is not considered to be of significant detriment. It is 
considered that the narrower area of street would still function acceptably in 
design terms.  
 

6.23 Enclosing the ground floor undercroft area within the extension would have 
some impact upon the views of the adjacent unit to the east (currently WH 
Smiths), depending the treatment of the glazing to the extension and the 
arrangement of internal furniture. Glimpsed views of this unit between the 
undercroft pillars are currently possible when approaching from the west. It 
would not affect views from in front of the unit or approaching from the east, 
and would still be visible when approaching the unit from the west and the 
angle of view opens up. WH Smith currently has a fascia sign that is part-
obscured by the existing building on the eastbound approach and a hanging 
sign in the Kings Walk entrance. Overall it is considered that the proposal is 
likely to moderately decrease visibility of this adjacent unit and I do not 
consider the proposed arrangement would be a significant detriment in 
planning terms in this respect.  
 

6.24 The building currently has a series of murals on the Eastgate Street frontage 
that makes a limited contribution to the streetscene. The applicant has agreed 
to retain these and relocate them to the Clarence Street elevation of the 
shopping centre. This will require planning permission which I am advised is 
to be made separately in the future, but the principle is considered 
acceptable. Queries have been raised in one representation about the safe 
dismantling of the murals. At the time of writing the applicant is investigating 
how to get into the building frontage to ascertain the method of fixing and 
prospects for safe removal. It is understood that the building contains 
asbestos so this is not a simple process. If there is any update on the matter 
at the time of the Committee meeting, Members will be advised.  
 

6.25 Overall it is considered that the development would enhance the character 
and appearance of the conservation area and the setting of the adjacent listed 
building. It would comply with the above cited legislative and design/heritage 
policy context subject to securing approval of the precise materials.  
 
Traffic and transport 

6.26 The NPPF requires that development proposals provide for safe and suitable 
access for all and that development should only be prevented or refused on 

Page 82



 

PT 

transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are 
severe. Policy INF1 of the JCS requires safe and accessible connections to 
the transport network. Policy TR31 of the 2002 Plan seeks to ensure that new 
proposals deal satisfactorily with highway safety issues. Policy TR.12 
establishes cycle parking standards.  
 

6.27 The proposed extension may result in an intensification in associated trips 
generated by the existing units, however in this city centre location where 
most trips would be expected to occur on foot and with good public transport 
links and parking provision the extension would not be expected to result in a 
significant impact on the highway network. The subdivision to form the café 
unit may generate unrelated trips however it is considered the larger existing 
store could generate similar numbers.  
 

6.28 The loss of the pedestrian access to the unit from inside Kings Walk (it 
appears a single independent unit would remain of the same depth as the 
adjacent Kings Walk units) would reduce permeability slightly but suitable 
access would still remain for pedestrians. 
 

6.29 The proposal would slightly reduce the width of Eastgate Street but the 
Highway Authority considers that sufficient width remains. A stopping up order 
would be required and is part of a separate process from planning permission 
that would not prevent the application from being determined. WH Smith’s 
objection also raises concerns about safety in the case of emergencies as a 
result of the works, and the absence of an objection from the Highway 
Authority is relevant in this regard. It appears unlikely that emergency services 
would use the undercroft area for emergency access so the physical works 
would not alter the part of the road available for access. Extending the 
property would push some pedestrian flow further out from the building into 
the remaining street area but it is not considered that this would significantly 
impede emergency access.  
 

6.30 The Highway Authority seeks a condition to restrict development until the 
street furniture outside the unit has been relocated away from the site 
frontage and entrance doors. I have discussed this with the applicant and with 
the City Centre Improvement Officer for the City centre. The applicant 
considers this to be unnecessary although they have now shown the bins 
outside the unit being relocated. The City Centre Improvement Officer has 
advised that the City Council manages the street furniture and can assist with 
any relocation, which ought to be fairly straightforward.  
 

6.31 The new entrance to the main unit would take a position where there is 
currently one bench in front within Eastgate Street, which would be about 4m 
in front of the new building line, although with the new recessed entrance 
arrangement it would be even further from the actual entrance threshold. 
There is be a bin and bollard immediately to north and south of the entrance 
that would be about 1.4m in front of the new building frontage. The application 
now shows the bins relocated further away in line with the benches.  
 

Page 83



 

PT 

6.32 The new entrance to the café unit would take a position where there is a bin in 
front within Eastgate Street that would be about 1.8m in front of the new 
building line but with the recessed entrance proposed, about 3m in front of the 
entrance threshold itself. There is an existing bench that would be just to the 
north of the entrance, about 2.8m in front of the new building line. The bin is 
also now proposed to be relocated further away between the benches. 
 

6.33 For context, the row of benches and bollards in front of the nearby units 
occupied by NatWest to Waterstones are about 2.7m forward of the unit 
entrances.  
 

6.34 It may be the case that relocating some of the street furniture would be 
beneficial for pedestrian flow, and moving the bins further away as shown on 
the plans would assist. I do not consider that a condition preventing 
commencement of development or commencement of use until street 
furniture is relocated to be necessary to make the development acceptable. A 
wider rationalization of the street furniture and positions could take place 
independently of this planning application.  
 

6.35 The Highway Authority also seeks the provision of additional visitor cycle 
parking near to the store on Eastgate Street. This would add more street 
furniture if sited in front of the unit. There are a significant number of existing 
cycle parking stands a short distance further down Eastgate Street (opposite 
Boots) and it is considered that in this context, including the proposal for an 
external café seating area within Eastgate Street, the provision of additional 
cycle parking outside the unit is unnecessary and could potentially create an 
undesirable amount of clutter. In the context of a modest change to the size of 
the premises and the existing cycle parking provision, it is not considered that 
this should be sought by condition.  
 

6.36 In terms of the condition to prevent outward-opening doors, the applicant has 
now altered the proposed plans to ensure that the doors do not swing over the 
highway by using a recessed entrance and this condition therefore also 
becomes unnecessary.  
 

6.37 Overall it is not considered that the proposal would lead to a significant 
residual impact on the highway, and the proposal is considered to be 
unobjectionable in highway terms.  
 
Archaeology 

6.38 As above, the NPPF sets out the importance of protecting and enhancing the 
historic environment. In addition, the 2002 Plan includes Policies BE.31 to 
BE.37 which seek to protect, enhance and preserve sites of archaeological 
interest and their settings, and seek appropriate levels of assessment. Policy 
SD8 of the JCS seeks to preserve and enhance heritage assets as 
appropriate to their significance.  
 

6.39 The site occupies an area of archaeological interest and the extension is likely 
to have a below-ground impact. An archaeological report was produced at the 
request of the City Archaeologist. The City Archaeologist considers the 

Page 84



 

PT 

proposal to be acceptable subject to conditions securing a programme of 
archaeological work and approval of the foundation design and ground works. 
These are considered to be necessary and reasonable.  
 

6.40 Subject to these conditions it is considered that the proposals comply with the 
above cited policy context and no objection is raised in these terms.  
 
Environmental Health 

6.41 Paragraph 17 of the NPPF provides that planning should always seek to 
secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and 
future occupants of land and buildings. Paragraphs 109 and 120 deal with 
pollution setting out that planning should prevent new uses from contributing 
to air or noise pollution, and that effects on general amenity should be taken 
into account. Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must 
cause no harm to local amenity including the amenity of neighbouring 
occupants and Policy BE.21 of the 2002 Plan seeks to protect amenity. In 
addition to this Policy FRP.11 of the 2002 Plan allows development liable to 
cause pollution only if the quality and enjoyment of the environment would not 
be unduly damaged or put at risk.  
 

6.42 As the proposal involves a café use and likely associated cooking processes, 
it is considered necessary to impose a condition requiring approval of the 
tenant’s extraction system and its implementation prior to first use.  
 

6.43 Subject to this condition the proposal is considered to comply with the above-
cited policy context, and no objection is raised in these terms.  
 
Economic considerations 

6.44 The development would generate economic activity from the construction 
phase, and potentially an increase in employment opportunities over and 
above the existing use, which weighs modestly in favour of the scheme.  
 

7.0 CONCLUSION 
 
7.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 provides 

that where regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the Planning Acts, the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 

 
7.2 The proposals would comply with the policy context cited above subject to 

certain conditions. Notably, the proposals would represent an enhancement to 
the setting of a listed building and to the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area, which are positive benefits of the scheme. The proposals 
would also provide benefits in delivering additional retail floorspace in a City 
Centre location. The benefits outweigh the limited disbenefits of the scheme.  

 
7.3 It is considered that the balance of material considerations weighs in favour of 

granting permission.  
 

Page 85



 

PT 

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE CITY GROWTH AND DELIVERY 
MANAGER 

 
8.1 That planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

Condition 1 
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 
Condition 2 
The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the plan referenced; 
  
P.1.1 Site location plan (received by the Local Planning Authority on 14th 
October 2017)  
 
P.3.1 Rev. A Proposed ground floor plan 
P.3.4 Rev. A Store front extension floor plan 
P.3.5 Rev. A Proposed elevation 
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 20th November 2017)  
 
P.3.2 Proposed first floor plan 
P.3.3 Proposed second floor plan 
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 15th November 2017)  
 
except where otherwise required by conditions of this permission.  
 
Reason 
To ensure the works are carried out in accordance with the approved plans. 
 

 
 Condition 3 

No above ground construction shall be commenced until details of all facing 
materials and finishes to the development including new shopfronts, doors, 
window frames and canopies have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that the materials and exterior building components are appropriate 
to their context, in accordance with Policies SD4 and SD8 of the Gloucester, 
Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adoption Version 2017, 
Paragraphs 58 and 131 of the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Policies BE.7, BE.23 and BE.29 of the Second Deposit City of Gloucester 
Local Plan (2002). 

Page 86



 

PT 

 
 
 Condition 4 

The Use Class A1/A3 café unit hereby permitted shall not be occupied until 
ventilation and cooking fume control measures have been installed in 
accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the equipment shall be operated and 
maintained in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions and the use 
shall only take place whilst the equipment is operational.  
 
Reason 
In order to ensure that fumes and odours are properly discharged and in the 
interests of the amenities of residential property in the locality in accordance 
with Policy SD14 of the Joint Core Strategy Adoption Version 2017, 
Paragraphs 17 and 120 of the NPPF and Policies FRP.11 and BE.21 of the 
Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan (2002).  

 
 

Condition 5 
The land defined as a rectangle and labelled “A3 café outdoor seating area” 
on plan ref. P.3.1 Rev. A Proposed ground floor plan shall only be used for 
external seating associated with the class A1/A3 café unit hereby approved, 
or as highway. For the avoidance of doubt the land shall not be used for the 
external display or storage of goods. 

 
Reason 
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and preserving the 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area in accordance with Policy 
SD8 of the Joint Core Strategy Adoption Version 2017, Paragraphs 58 and 
131 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy BE.29 of the City of 
Gloucester Second Deposit Local Plan 2002. 

 
 

Condition 6 

No development or demolition below slab level shall take place within the 

application site until the applicant, or their agents or successors in title, has 

secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in 

accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted 

by the applicant and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason 

To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to 

record and advance understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in 

accordance with Policy SD8 of the Joint Core Strategy Adoption Version 

2017, paragraphs 131 and 141 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

and Policies BE.36, BE.37 & BE.38 of the City of Gloucester Second Deposit 

Local Plan 2002.  

 

Page 87



 

PT 

 

Condition 7  

No development shall commence until a detailed scheme showing the 

complete scope and arrangement of the foundation design and ground works 

of the proposed development (including drains and services) has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Development shall only take place in accordance with the approved scheme. 

 

Reason 

The site may contain significant heritage assets. The Council requires that 

disturbance or damage by foundations and related works is minimised, and 

that archaeological remains are, where appropriate, preserved in situ. This 

accords with Policy SD8 of the Joint Core Strategy Adoption Version 2017, 

Policy BE.31 and BE.36 of the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan 

(2002) and paragraphs 131 and 141 of the NPPF.  

 
 
Note:  
This planning permission does not give any authority to the applicant to carry 
out any works on the public highway. Any street furniture relocation works 
must be carried out by either the owner of the street furniture, the Local 
Highway Authority or the applicant with permission from the street furniture 
owner and highway authority. This permission also does not convey any 
approval to a stopping up order, which would be required separately.  

 
 
Decision:   ....................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:   .........................................................................................................................  
 
 .....................................................................................................................................  
 
 .....................................................................................................................................  
 
 
Person to contact: Adam Smith 
 (Tel: 396702) 

Page 88



© Crown copyright and database rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 10019169 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 

proceedings. 

 

17/01177/FUL 
 

BHS 
27 - 31 Eastgate Street 
Gloucester 
GL1 1NS 
  
Planning Committee 05.12.2017 
   

 

 
 

 

Page 89



Layout ID  Revision

P.3.1 

Drawing Scale

1:200 @A2

Drawing Name

PROPOSED
GROUND FLOOR
PLAN

Job Title

Gloucester - Kings walk

Drawing Status

Planning
Date first Issued

25 - 39 Eastgate Street
Gloucester
GL1 1NS

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 100

All dimensions to be checked on site and all discrepances reported to the contract administrator before any works proceed

20.11.17

Description

14 Little Portland Street, London, W1W 8BN
T:  020 7637 0601   W:  www.reefestates.co.uk

c    Copyright to Urban Reef Limited and/or all Reef Estates Limited Companies

Rev Date

17 19 21

te Street Bridge L nk
at Car Park Level 4

Eastgate Street Bridge Link
at Car Park Level 4 W H SMITH

Exist. Bench

Exist. Bench

Exist. Bench

Exist. Bench

Exist. Bench

Exist. Bench

Exist. Bench

UP

18,114 sq ft

2,000 sq ft

3,303 sq ft

2,506

UP

UP

UP

Gas Pipe

UP

DR

DH 1.96

Roller Shutter Door

UP UP

UP

UP

DOWN UP

UP

TO
BASEMENT

Elec Switches

Incoming

Fire Exit

UP

Pipes

UP

EA
ST

G
AT

E 
ST

R
EE

T

KINGSWALK ARCADE

DOROTHY PERKINS

N
EW

 IN
N

 L
AN

E

10
6m

2  E
xt

en
si

on
19

m
2

Ex
te

ns
io

n

UN
IT

 1
 B

IN
S

UNIT 2 - BINS

BINS

6m
2  E

xt
en

si
on

A3: Cafe

A1: Retail

A1: Retail

PO

Relocated
Bin

Relocated
Bin

Relocated
Bin

23

Entry

Entry

Ramp

1:20

Entry

SERVICE CORRIDOR

Re
du

ce
d 

& 
Re

pl
ac

ed
 C

an
op

y
Ex

ist
in

g 
Bu

ild
in

g 
lin

e

Ramp

1:10lan
di

ng

LIFT

LIFT

LIFT

DP

DP

DP DP

DP

STAFF BIKE
PARKING

SERVICE
YARD

Ex
ist

in
g 

Bu
ild

in
g 

lin
e

EX
IS

TI
NG

 D
RA

IN
 P

IP
E

A3
 C

af
e 

ou
td

oo
r

se
at

in
g 

ar
ea

.

27 - 37 Eastgate St

39 - Eastgate St

25 Eastgate St

NEW DRAINAGE
POINTS

C O N N E C T  T O  E X I S T I N G  S T A C K

N

A

P
age 90



  

 
 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF GLOUCESTER 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

ON 

 

5th December 2017 

 

 

 

DELEGATED DECISIONS 

1ST – 31st October 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Services Group Manager, 

Herbert Warehouse,The Docks, Gloucester 
 

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



 Abbeydale 
 17/00120/FUL RHIAM 
 7 Claridge Close Gloucester GL4 4AT  

 Single storey side extension. 
 G3Y 25/10/2017 

 17/00955/FUL SHANE. 
 45 Hawthorne Avenue Gloucester GL4 4QB  

 Proposed front entrance porch 

 G3Y 26/10/2017 

 17/00956/FUL RHIAM 
 1 Buttercup Lawn Gloucester GL4 5XR  

 Single storey rear and side extension. 

 G3Y 05/10/2017 

 Abbeymead 
 17/00936/LAW SHANE. 
 6 Discovery Road Gloucester GL4 5GY 

 SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO REAR OF PROPERTY 

 LAW 17/10/2017 

 Barnwood 
 17/00509/TPO JJH 
 20 The Larches Gloucester GL4 5WR  

 Fell tree poplar tree in rear garden of no 20. Root related subsidence  

 TPDECS 30/10/2017 

 17/00542/FUL SHANE. 
 15 Colin Road Gloucester GL4 3JL 

 Demolition of garage and two storey extension to side and rear of property to 
  provide extended kitchen/diner, store room, downstairs bathroom.  Upstairs  
 - extending existing bedroom, moving the bathroom and additional bedroom  

 G3Y 05/10/2017 

Page 92



 17/00884/FUL FEH 
 12 Durham Road Gloucester GL4 3AS 

 Demolition of outbuilding and erection of new 3 bedroom detached property  
 with driveway 

 G3Y 05/10/2017 

 Barton & Tredworth 
 17/00627/FUL RHIAM 
 14 Widden Street Gloucester GL1 4AQ  

 Erection of a detached garage at the rear of the property. 

 G3Y 26/10/2017 

 17/00743/FUL FEH 
 386 Barton Street Gloucester GL1 4LF  

 Erection of 1 no. two storey detached dwellinghouse on land adjacent to  
 existing dwellinghouse at 386 Barton Street  (re-submission of previously  
 approved application 15/00082/FUL) 

 G3Y 25/10/2017 

 17/00805/COU FEH 
 18 Conduit Street Gloucester GL1 4XH  

 Change of use from dwelling house to 8 bedroomed House in Multiple  
 Occupation with off street parking (retrospective) 

 REF 03/10/2017 

 17/00957/FUL SHANE. 
 Asda Supermarket  Bruton Way Gloucester GL1 1DS 

 Change of use of part of store car park to a petrol filling station and  
 associated infrastructure. 

 G3Y 18/10/2017 

 Elmbridge 
 17/00584/LBC RHIAM 
 30 Barnwood Road Gloucester GL2 0RX 

 Construct internal insulation to the inside of the external walls and insertion 
  of rooflights. 

 REFLBC 25/10/2017 

Page 93



 17/00850/FUL SHANE. 
 36 Oakleaze Gloucester GL2 0LG  

 Creation of new 3 bed residential unit (C3) and new vehicular access. 

 G3Y 05/10/2017 

 17/00939/PDE SHANE. 
 6 Merevale Road Gloucester GL2 0QY  

 NOB 31/10/2017 

 17/00977/FUL RHIAM 
 107 Elmleaze Gloucester GL2 0LA 

 Two storey side and rear extension. 

 REF 26/10/2017 

 Grange 
 17/00675/FUL RHIAM 
 Unit 7 And 8 Central Trading Estate Cole Avenue Gloucester GL2 5HA  

 Creation of new entrances and alterations to the car parking layout 
 G3Y 19/10/2017 

 Hucclecote 
 17/00862/FUL SHANE. 
 44 Lynton Road Gloucester GL3 3HX 

 Single storey outbuilding at the rear 
 G3Y 13/10/2017 

 17/00971/FUL RHIAM 
 32 Kingstone Avenue Gloucester GL3 3AR 

 Erection of log cabin for the use of an office for a business. 

 G3Y 18/10/2017 

 17/00978/FUL SHANE. 
 38 Oakwood Drive Gloucester GL3 3JF 

 Fill In Existing Roof Canopy To Front To Create New Enclosed Porch 
 G3Y 27/10/2017 

Page 94



 Kingsholm & Wotton 
 17/00940/FUL RHIAM 
 Gloucester Rugby Football Club  Kingsholm Road Gloucester GL1 3AX 

 Proposed Telecoms Cabin to enhance the Digital Infrastructure at Kingsholm  
 G3Y 31/10/2017 

 17/00967/LBC SHANE. 
 High School For Girls Denmark Road Gloucester GL1 3JN  

 Replacement of 2 no. sets of timber double doors. Both to fit into existing  
 door frame and opening 

 G3Y 25/10/2017 

 17/01062/TRECON JJH 
 40 Heathville Road Gloucester GL1 3JB 

 Beech located at the back of the property - Reduce all round by 3m balance  
 crown as tree is heavier on neighbours side. 

 TCNOB 12/10/2017 

 Kingsway 
 17/00836/LAW SHANE. 
 47 Uxbridge Lane Kingsway Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2EY  

 Velux window in roofspace 

 LAW 17/10/2017 

 17/00841/LAW SHANE. 
 56 Lossiemouth Road Kingsway Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2FW 

 single storey rear extension 
 G3Y 25/10/2017 

 17/00886/FUL SHANE. 
 16 Fylingdales Garden Kingsway Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2EX 

 Proposed single storey side extension 

 G3Y 13/10/2017 

 17/01077/TPO JJH 
 123 Valley Gardens Kingsway Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2BS  

 Crown lift to 3m.  Reduce the main limb over the car parking to a suitable fork 
  in the tree. 

Page 95



 TPDECS 05/10/2017 

 Longlevens 
 17/00770/PDE SHANE. 
 103 Oxstalls Lane Gloucester GL2 9HS  

 Single Storey Rear Extension (Depth 8m, Eaves height 2.4m, Total height 3.6m) 

 ENOBJ 09/10/2017 

 17/00774/FUL RHIAM 
 35 Cheltenham Road Gloucester GL2 0JF 

 Single storey and two storey Front Side and Rear Extensions. 

 G3Y 05/10/2017 

 17/00868/FUL SHANE. 
 48 Oxstalls Drive Gloucester GL2 9DE 

 Single storey rear extension to dwelling 
 G3Y 05/10/2017 

 17/00871/FUL SHANE. 
 10 Cotswold Gardens Gloucester GL2 0DR  

 Erection of dwelling. Revised approval 13/01085/FUL with the benefit of  
 existing vehicular access. 

 G3Y 17/10/2017 

 17/00875/CONDIT ADAMS 
 University Of Gloucestershire  Oxstalls Lane Gloucester GL2 9HW 

 Application to discharge Conditions 23 (tree protection) and 32 (drainage) for  
 the artificial pitches phase of permission ref. 15/01190/OUT 

 ALDIS 26/10/2017 

 17/00888/FUL RHIAM 
 6 Glevum Close Gloucester GL2 9JJ 

 Single storey side and rear extension 

 G3Y 05/10/2017 

Page 96



 17/00901/FUL SHANE. 
 62 Oxstalls Lane Gloucester GL2 9HU  

 Demolish existing garage to rear. Construct two storey extension to side and  
 rear with single storey garage to side. 

 G3Y 13/10/2017 

 17/00961/FUL SHANE. 
 7 Calspick Way Gloucester GL2 0XA 

 Single storey side and rear extension to property 

 G3Y 27/10/2017 

 17/00981/FUL RHIAM 
 33 Church Road Gloucester GL2 0AB 

 Proposed loft conversion, erection of a 2 story side extension and a single  
 storey extension to the rear.  

 

 G3Y 30/10/2017 

 17/01018/PDE RHIAM 
 44 Kendal Road Gloucester GL2 0ND  

 Single storey rear extension depth: 3.35, maximum height: 3.95 metres, height  
 at eaves 2.90 metres. 

 ENOBJ 11/10/2017 

 Matson & Robinswood 
 17/00698/FUL RHIAM 
 103 Finlay Road Gloucester GL4 6TW 

 Demolition of single-storey side extension and erection of two-storey  
 side/rear extension and single-storey rear extension 

 G3Y 05/10/2017 

  

Page 97



17/00973/FUL RHIAM 
 36 Cotteswold Road Gloucester GL4 6RG 

 Minor material amendment to planning permission 17/00678/FUL to increase  
 the size of the single storey extension.  
 
Conditions(s) Removal: 
 
Client wishes  
 to slightly enlarge the extension therefore the drawing reference in  

 G3Y 26/10/2017 

 Moreland 
 17/00732/FUL SHANE. 
 225 Stroud Road Gloucester GL1 5JU  

 Dropped Kerb 

 G3Y 18/10/2017 

 17/00905/FUL RHIAM 
 38 Seymour Road Gloucester GL1 5PT 

 Single storey extension ate the rear of the property, 

 G3Y 20/10/2017 

 Podsmead 
 17/00220/CONDIT RHIAM 
 St Gobain Former Wellman Graham Bristol Road Gloucester GL2 5BX  

 Discharge of Condition Nos. 5 (secure parking for bicycles), 7 (boundary  
 treatments) & 8 (boundary treatments) on Planning Permission Ref:  

 ALDIS 05/10/2017 

 Quedgeley Fieldcourt 
 17/00760/FUL RHIAM 
 23 Gosswood Corner Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4WS 

 Remove existing 2m wall and gate on property and erect a 2m high brown  
 feather board fence and matching gate to the side of the property leading to  
 the front of the garage. 

 G3Y 19/10/2017 

Page 98



 Quedgeley Severnvale  
 17/00835/FUL SHANE. 
 29 Hillcot Close Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4FU 

 Single storey rear extension to replace existing conservatory 
 G3Y 03/10/2017 

 17/00881/FUL SHANE. 
 3 Weavers Road Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4WX  

 Two storey side extension above garage and single storey rear extension. 

 G3Y 05/10/2017 

 17/00950/FUL RHIAM 
 9 Pegasus Gardens Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4NP 

 Integral garage converted to living accommodation. 

 G3Y 05/10/2017 

 17/00983/CONDIT SHANE. 
 Former Orchard Olympus Park Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4NF  

 Discharge of condition no. 10 on planning permission ref: 14/01158/FUL 

 ALDIS 31/10/2017 

 17/00991/FUL FEH 
 15 Old Elmore Lane Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4NY  

 Erection of detached dwelling on land to rear of 15 Old Elmore Lane 

 G3Y 31/10/2017 

 17/01209/PREAPP FEH 
 14 Turnstone Drive Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4XA  

  Build an end of terrace property in garden. 

 RET 31/10/2017 

 Tuffley 
 17/00948/FUL ADAMS 
 Fox And Elm  385 Stroud Road Gloucester GL4 0DA 

 New entrance porch to the rear of the restaurant, consisting of a flat roof with 
  a felt covering, cedar cladding to the perimeter, with a fully glazed entrance  
 door, opening onto a new level concrete pad, additional external seating to  

Page 99



 G3Y 31/10/2017 

 17/00994/FUL ADAMS 
 Fox And Elm  385 Stroud Road Gloucester GL4 0DA 

 Works to external areas of recently completed retail shell comprising  
 external plant, ATM, 2 no. satellite dishes and 4 no. external louvres. 

 G3Y 31/10/2017 

 Westgate 
 17/00611/FUL FEH 
 25 Hempsted Lane Gloucester GL2 5JN 

 Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission  
 13/00661/FUL (first-floor extension to garage at rear) in order to retain a  
 garage that does not comply with the approved plans (15cm increase in ridge  

 GSC 16/10/2017 

 17/00758/FUL SHANE. 
 80 Hempsted Lane Gloucester GL2 5JS 

 Replacement of existing conservatory with rear extension, and first floor  
 extension above existing single storey side extension, alterations to porch to 
  front and addition of cladding to front elevation 

 REF 09/10/2017 

 17/00866/FUL RHIAM 
 Newark Farm  Hempsted Lane Gloucester GL2 5JS 

 First floor rear extension and single storey rear extension to provide  
 disabled specialist and carer's accommodation for disabled use. 

 G3Y 31/10/2017 

 17/00873/FUL RHIAM 
 4 Honeythorn Close Gloucester GL2 5LU  

 Single storey and two storey rear extension and first floor extension to the  
 G3Y 05/10/2017 

 17/00896/LAW SHANE. 
 10 Market Way  East Gate Shopping Centre Gloucester GL1 1QH 

 Proposed Use/change of Use to Class A2-Financial & Professional Services.  
 Proposed change of use only under GPDO, 

 LAW 13/10/2017 

Page 100



 17/00908/ADV SHANE. 
 Matthews Warehouse  High Orchard Street Gloucester GL2 5QY 

 Individual lettered hanging sign with logo. 

 GFY 13/10/2017 

 17/00937/FUL FEH 
 Monuments House 1 St Marys Street Gloucester   

 Conversion and refurbishment of property from two flats into 8 Bed HMO  
 together with demolition of single storey side and rear elevations and  
 erection of single storey rear extension. 

 G3Y 17/10/2017 

 17/00944/LBC FEH 
 Monuments House 1 St Marys Street Gloucester   

 Conversion and refurbishment of property from two flats into 8 Bed HMO  
 together with demolition of single storey side and rear elevations and  
 erection of single storey rear extension. 

 GLB 17/10/2017 

 17/00968/COU FEH 
 79-81 Northgate Street Gloucester GL1 2AG  

 Convert part of first floor into a 1 bedroom flat, new rear access staircase and 
  construction of three timber storage sheds at the rear 

 G3Y 05/10/2017 

 17/01002/CONDIT ADAMS 
 Orchard Square The Docks Gloucester   

 Discharge of Condition No. 3 (2017/18 site layout) on Planning Permission Ref: 
  16/01212/FUL - Option A 

 ALDIS 19/10/2017 

 17/01003/CONDIT ADAMS 
 Orchard Square The Docks Gloucester   

 Discharge of Condition No. 3  (2017/18 site layout) on Planning Permission  
 Ref: 16/01212/FUL - Option B 

 ALDIS 19/10/2017 

  

Page 101



17/01060/AGR ADAMS 
 The Barn Owl Centre Netheridge Farm Netheridge Close Gloucester GL2  

 Prior notification application for erection of 2 agricultural barns plus  
 hardstanding and access drive 

 WDN 17/10/2017 

 17/01082/TPO JJH 
 Cedar House  Spa Road Gloucester GL1 1XL 

 Cedar Tree. Using qualified NTPC trained tree surgeons remove single branch  
 which is hanging low and could cause damage to cars 
. All generated waste to 
  be chipped and removed from site 

 TPDECS 24/10/2017 

 17/01094/DEM FEH 
 183 Westgate Street Gloucester GL1 2RN  

 Proposed demolition of existing factory buildings. 
 NRPR 25/10/2017 

 17/01123/EIA ADAMS 
 Land At Bakers Quay Llanthony Wharf And Monkmeadow Bounded By  

 EIA screening opinion request 

 SCR 20/10/2017 

Page 102



  

DECISION DESCRIPTIONS ABBREVIATIONS 
AAPRZ: Prior Approval Approved 
ALDIS: All Discharged 
AR: Approval of reserved matters 
C3C: Conservation Area Consent for a period of 3 years 
CAC: Conservation Area Consent 
ECREF: PDE Refused - Commenced 
ENOBJ: No Objections 
ENPDEZ: PDE Decision – No objections 
EOBJ: PDE Decision - Objection 
G3L: Grant Listed Building Consent for a period of 3 Years 
G3Y: Grant Consent for a period of 3 Years 
GA: Grant Approval 
GATCMZ: Grant approval for telecommunications mast 
GFY: Grant Consent for a period of Five Years 
GLB: Grant Listed Building Consent 
GLBGOS: Grant Listed Building Consent subject to Government Office of South 

West clearance 
GOP: Grant Outline Permission 
GOSG: Government Office of South West Granted 
GP: Grant Permission 
GSC: Grant Subject to Conditions 
GTY: Grant Consent for a period of Two Years 
GYO: Grant Consent for a period of One Year 
LAW: Certificate of Law permitted 
NOB: No objections 
NOS96 No objection to a Section 96 application 
NPW: Not proceeded with 
OBJ: Objections to County Council 
OBS: Observations to County Council 
PADIS Part Discharged 
PER: Permission for demolition 
RAD: Refuse advert consent 
REF: Refuse 
REFLBC: Refuse Listed Building Consent 
REFREA: Refuse 
REFUSE: Refuse 
RET: Returned 
ROS96: Raise objections to a Section 96 application 
RPA: Refuse Prior Approval 
SCO: EIA Screening Opinion 
SPLIT: Split decision 
TCNOB: Tree Conservation Area – No objection 
TELPRI: Telecommunications Prior Approval 
TPDECS: TPO decision notice 
TPREF: TPO refuse 
WDN: Withdrawn 

 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Clearwater Primary School, Quedgeley - 17/00729/FUL
	SLP.pdf
	Sheets
	PL01 - Proposed Site Location Plan


	lANDCSAPE.pdf
	P17-0473_04 [Landscape Masterplan]
	3/A1 Landscape-10
	3/A1 Landscape-11
	Viewport-33



	6 25 - 31 Eastgate Street - 1701177FUL
	P.3.1A - Highway comments- 20.11.17.pdf
	P.3.1A - Highway comments- 20.11.17 
	PLANNING
	P3 PROPOSED PLANS
	P.3.1 PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN





	8 Delegated Decisions



